
  
 

 
TENTATIVE AGENDA & MEETING NOTICE 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 5, 2014 
8:30 A.M. 

WATAUGA COUNTY ADMINISTRATION BUILDING 
COMMISSIONERS' BOARD ROOM 

 
 

TIME # TOPIC PRESENTER PAGE 
     

8:30 1  CALL REGULAR MEETING TO ORDER   
 2  APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

July 8, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes 
July 8, 2014, Closed Session Minutes 

 1 

 3  APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 5, 2014 AGENDA  9 
8:35 4  WATAUGA COUNTY ARTS COUNCIL REQUEST TO MODIFY 

LEASE 
MS. CHERRY JOHNSON 11 

8:40 5  BID AWARD REQUEST FOR REPAIRS TO THE TRANSFER 
STATION FLOOR 

MR. J. V. POTTER 25 

8:45 6  REQUEST TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW FOR 
CITIZEN COMMENT REGARDING PROPOSED AMENDMENTS 
TO THE ORDINANCE TO GOVERN HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES 
IN WATAUGA COUNTY 

MR. JOE FURMAN 27 

8:50 7  MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Bid Award Request for Truck Purchase 
B. Proposed Contract for Architectural Services for 

Medics Base #3 

MR. ROBERT MARSH  
35 
43 

8:55 8  COMMUNICATIONS & EMERGENCY SERVICES 
A. Out-of-State Travel Request   
B. Proposed HMGP Grant Application 

MR. JEFF VIRGINIA  
71 
77 

9:00 9  TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 
B. Refunds and Releases 

MR. LARRY WARREN  
111 
113 

9:05 10  MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Caldwell Community College & Technical 

Institute (CCC&TI) Proposed Land Transfer 
B. Request to Accept Grant to Fund Potential 

Recreation Center Site Analysis and Renderings 
C. Appointment of the North Carolina Association of 

County Commissioners (NCACC) Annual 
Conference Voting Delegate 

D. Boards and Commissions 
E. Announcements 

MR. DERON GEOUQUE  
115 

 
121 

 
125 

 
 

127 
131 

9:10 11  PUBLIC COMMENT  133 
10:10 12  ADJOURN   
 



AGENDA ITEM 2: 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
July 8, 2014, Regular Meeting Minutes 
July 8, 2014, Closed Session Minutes 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

1



MINUTES 
 

WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
TUESDAY, JULY 8, 2014 

 
The Watauga County Board of Commissioners held a regular meeting, as scheduled, on Tuesday, 
July 8, 2014, at 5:30 P.M. in the Commissioners' Board Room of the Watauga County 
Administration Building, Boone, North Carolina. 
  
  PRESENT: Nathan Miller, Chairman 
    David Blust, Vice-Chairman 
    Billy Kennedy, Commissioner 

John Welch, Commissioner 
Perry Yates, Commissioner 
Austin Eggers, County Attorney 

    Deron Geouque, County Manager 
    Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 
 
Chairman Miller called the meeting to order at 5:30 P.M. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust opened the meeting with a prayer and Commissioner Yates led the Pledge 
of Allegiance. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the June 17, 2014, regular meeting and 
closed session minutes. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the 
June 17, 2014, regular meeting minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the 
June 17, 2014, closed session minutes as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Chairman Miller called for additions and/or corrections to the July 8, 2014, agenda. 
 
The following additions were requested: 
 

• Sheriff’s Office Out-of-State Travel Request 

DRAFT 
080514 BCC Meeting

2



• Closed Session:   
Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143.318.11(a)(3) 
Personnel Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6) 

 

Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the July 8, 2014, 
agenda as amended. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

HIGH COUNTRY RECREATION REQUEST 
Dr. Scott St. Clair, High Country Recreation, presented an update on community meetings held 
at Green Valley, Cove Creek, and Parkway Schools to allow citizen input regarding a County 
recreation facility.  Specific feedback included a preferred location of the current Swim Complex 
Site, which is centrally located and integrated with recreation infrastructure, and amenities 
consistently mentioned in the meetings which were almost identical to a recreation Needs 
Assessment performed by ASU in 2010. 
 
Dr. St. Clair requested the County appropriate funds for initial architectural renderings and site 
analysis at the current Swim Complex to determine possible recreational facilities with an 
estimated cost of approximately $10,000.   
 
County Manager Geouque stated that he and Parks and Recreation Director, Stephen Poulos met 
with John Francis, NC Community Foundation, to discuss a possible grant to fund all or a 
portion of the site analysis.  Mr. Francis was to contact the County in the next week or two. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve, contingent upon 
receiving $10,000 from the NC Community Foundation, hiring an architect to provide site 
analysis and renderings for the Swim Complex area with costs not to exceed the $10,000 
awarded. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

COOPERATIVE EXTENSION STAFFING REQUEST 
Mr. Jim Hamilton, Cooperative Extension Director, requested continued authorization for the 
horticulture agent position to remain at forty (40) hours per week with the County funding 
twenty-nine (29) hours per week through November.  The frozen position has been budgeted in 
the Fiscal Year 2014-2015 budget. 
 
On April 1, 2014, the Board approved and authorized Mr. Hamilton to use funds budgeted for 
the frozen horticulture agent to increase the temporary horticulture agent from twenty (20) to 
forty (40) hours.  At that time, the County was paying nine (9) of the twenty (20) hours with the 
State paying the remaining eleven (11) hours.  The salary split was forty-five percent (45%) 
County funding and fifty-five percent (55%) State funding; which complied with the existing 
Memorandum of Understanding (MOU). 

080514 BCC Meeting

3



Mr. Hamilton was authorized to increase the temporary employee’s hours from twenty (20) to 
forty (40) hours.  The County was to pay twenty-nine (29) of the hours with the State continuing 
to pay eleven (11) hours.  The request required the County to pay seventy-two and half percent 
(72.5%) and the State twenty-seven and a half percent (27.5%) which was not in accordance with 
the MOU.  The additional funded hours were authorized through June 30, 2014 and would 
require Board approval to continue into Fiscal Year 2014-2015. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to authorize the County 
continue to fund twenty-nine (29) hours of the horticulture agent’s forty (40) hour per week 
salary through November with funds to be allocated from the Cooperative Extension’s budgeted 
frozen horticulture position. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

SOIL AND WATER EQUIPMENT PURCHASE REQUEST 
Mr. Brian Chatham, Soil and Water Technician, stated that the North Carolina Department of 
Agriculture (NCDA) had requested Watauga County to accept the following three pieces of 
equipment that were acquired through a grant but were not being utilized at their current 
location: 
 

• KMC 06-104-DB2 Row Bedder 
• Yetter 71 Flex 2 Row Planter 
• Knives & 3 Point Hitch Middle Buster 

 
Mr. Chatham requested the Board accept the transfer of equipment by from the NCDA and 
approve the ADFP Trust Fund Grant Contract Transfer Agreement.  The County would assume 
the maintenance and storage of the equipment which could be loaned to local farmers as needed.  
Mr. Chatham also mentioned that a future Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) may be 
presented to the Board between Watauga, Avery, and Caldwell Counties which would allow 
farmers in those Counties use of the equipment as well. 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to accept the donation and 
approve the ADFP Trust Fund Grant Contract Transfer Agreement as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PLANNING & INSPECTIONS VEHICLE BID AWARD 
Mr. Joe Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, requested the Board authorize the purchase 
of one (1) 2014 Ford F150 4x4 pickup truck from the State Contract vendor, Wilmington Ford in 
the amount of $18,804 (includes delivery to the County office) plus $570.12 for taxes and the 
tag.  Boone Ford and Ashe County Ford were both given an opportunity to bid on the vehicle but 
were unable to match the State contract price.  Adequate funds are budgeted to cover the 
expenditure. 

080514 BCC Meeting

4



Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to award the bid for the 
purchase of one (1) 2014 Ford F150 4x4 pickup truck to Wilmington Ford in the total amount of 
$19,374.12 which includes the costs of delivery, taxes, and the tag. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

REQUEST TO ACCEPT DONATION TO ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION 
Mr. Joe Furman, Economic Development Director, stated that the Watauga Committee of 100 
had donated $1,000 to the Watauga County Economic Development Commission to further 
economic development projects in the County.  Mr. Furman recommended the funds, if accepted, 
be allocated in the Economic Development budget and be used for economic development 
expenses associated with the Appalachian Enterprise Center (AEC). 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to accept the $1,000 
donation from the Watauga Committee of 100 and to allocate the funds to the Economic 
Development budget. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

PROPOSED FY 2015 APPALCART CONTRACTS 
Mr. Chris Turner, AppalCART Director, presented proposed transportation service contracts for 
FY 2015 with Project on Aging, at the rates of $0.75 per vehicle mile and $13.29 per vehicle 
service hour, and the Department of Social Services at the rate of $1.40 per vehicle mile.  The 
proposed rates are the same as the previous fiscal year. 
 
Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to approve the AppalCART 
contracts with Project on Aging and the Department of Social Services as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

COMMUNICATIONS AND EMERGENCY SERVICES PROPOSED CONTRACT WITH 
WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS, INC. 
Mr. Jeff Virginia, Emergency Services Director, requested the Board approve a maintenance 
contract with Wireless Communications Inc. for the County’s E911 system in the amount of 
$52,835.76.  Funds for the maintenance contract were included in the current budget. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the maintenance 
contract with Wireless Communications Inc. for the County’s E911 system in the amount of 
$52,835.76 pursuant to the review of the County Attorney. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

080514 BCC Meeting

5



TAX MATTERS 
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 

Tax Administrator Larry Warren presented the Tax Collections Report for the month of 
June 2014.  This report was presented for information only and, therefore, no action was 
required. 
 

B. Refunds and Releases 
 

Mr. Warren presented the Refunds and Releases Report for June 2014, as well as a report from 
the new motor vehicle billing system, North Carolina Vehicle Tax System (NCVTS), for Board 
approval: 

TO BE TYPED IN MINUTE BOOK 
 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the Refunds and 
Releases Report for June 2014, as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the North 
Carolina Vehicle Tax System Refunds and Releases Report for June 2014 as presented. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

TOWN OF BOONE’S EXTRATERRITORIAL JURISDICTION (ETJ) DISCUSSION 
Chairman Miller stated that the State recently passed Senate Bill 865 stating that the Town of 
Boone shall not exercise any powers of extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ) as provided in Article 
19 of Chapter 6 160A of the General Statutes effective January 1, 2015.  Chairman Miller 
requested a public hearing be scheduled at the second regular meeting in August to allow for 
citizen comment regarding the issue. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to schedule a public hearing on 
Tuesday, August 19, 2014, at 6:00 P.M. to allow for citizen comment regarding the effect of 
Senate Bill 865 on the Town of Boone’s extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Sheriff’s Office Out-of-State Travel Request  

 

County Manager Geouque stated that the Sheriff’s Office had requested approval for out-of-state 
travel for Detective Patrick Anderson to travel to Quantico, Virginia, for training.  Costs for the 
training were to be covered by the Drug Enforcement Administration. 

080514 BCC Meeting

6



 
Vice-Chairman Blust, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the Sheriff’s Office 
out-of-stated travel as requested. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Blust, Kennedy, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-1(Miller) 

 
B. Contract with LeadsOnline to Provide Data Collection  

 

County Manager Geouque stated that Sheriff Hagaman had requested approval of a contract with 
LeadsOnline for data collection from pawn shops, precious metal dealers, and scrap metal 
dealers.  The program provides law enforcement and the aforementioned businesses with an 
online point of sale reporting system for pawned and sold items, along with metals. 
 
The cost of the program is $2,848 annually with an effective date of July 1, 2014, through June 
30, 2015.  If approved, funds could be allocated from the Sheriff’s drug fund (Fund 23).  A 
budget amendment would be forthcoming recognizing the additional revenue and expense. 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to approve the contract with 
LeadsOnline contingent upon the County Attorney’s review. 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 
C. Appointment of the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’ (NCACC) 

Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' 
(NCACC) Annual Conference is scheduled for August 14-17, 2014, in Buncombe County.  Each 
county in attendance is required to select a voting member for representation at the annual 
business meeting which is conducted as a part of the conference.  The submission of the voting 
delegate form is due to the NCACC by August 1, 2014. 
 
By consensus, the Board tabled discussion until the next meeting. 
 

D. Boards and Commissions 
 

County Manager Geouque stated that Ms. Laura Jane Ward, Regional Ombudsman with the 
High Country Council of Governments, has requested that Mr. Herbert Hash be considered for 
reappointment to the Watauga County Nursing Home Advisory Committee for a three-year term. 
 
Commissioner Kennedy, seconded by Commissioner Yates, moved to reappoint Mr. Herbert 
Hash to a three-year term on the Watauga County Nursing Home Advisory Committee. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Blust, Kennedy, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-1(Miller) 

 
[Clerk’s Note:  As this was a first reading an unanimous vote was required; therefore, a second reading will be held 
at the next regular meeting.] 

080514 BCC Meeting

7



 
E. Announcements 

 

County Manager Geouque announced the following: 
 

 The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) Annual 
Conference is scheduled for August 14-17, 2014, in Buncombe County. 

 The dedication of the Law Enforcement Memorial will be Saturday, July 26, 2014, at 
7:00 PM. 

 The renovations to the AEC have been completed and the new Watauga Workforce 
Center is open for business. 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
Annette Reeves, Lee Stroup, Jeff Templeton, and Quint David each shared comments regarding 
the Town of Boone’s extraterritorial jurisdiction (ETJ).  Shawna Ryan had signed up to speak but 
stated that she would wait until the public hearing scheduled in August to share her comments. 

CLOSED SESSION 
At 6:27 P.M., Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Welch, moved to enter Closed 
Session to discuss Attorney/Client Matters, per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(3) and Personnel Matters, 
per G. S. 143-318.11(a)(6). 
 

VOTE: Aye-5 
 Nay-0 

 

[Clerk’s Note:  Chairman Miller had to leave for a previous engagement during the closed session at 6:43 P.M.] 
 
Commissioner Yates, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to resume the open meeting 
at 6:47 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Blust, Kennedy, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

ADJOURN 
Commissioner Welch, seconded by Commissioner Kennedy, moved to adjourn the meeting at 
6:47 P.M. 
 

VOTE: Aye-4(Blust, Kennedy, Welch, Yates) 
 Nay-0 
 Absent-1(Miller) 

 
 

 ________________________________ 
ATTEST: Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
____________________________ 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

080514 BCC Meeting

8



AGENDA ITEM 3: 

APPROVAL OF THE AUGUST 5, 2014, AGENDA 
 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

9



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

10



AGENDA ITEM 4: 

WATAUGA COUNTY ARTS COUNCIL REQUEST TO MODIFY LEASE  

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Cherry Johnson, Watauga County Arts Council, will present a request to lease the facility 
located at 377 Shadowline Drive.  The current lease is scheduled to expire April 15, 2015.  The 
Arts Council has invested over $23,000 into the building and grounds.   
 
The term of the proposed lease is for nine (9) years commencing April 16, 2015 and ending on 
April 15, 2024, and shall automatically renew for successive ninety (90) day periods unless 
either party gives notice of its intent not to renew. Rent is one dollar ($1) per year and any 
subleases must be approved by the Board of Commissioners.  Should the County desire to enter 
into the lease, the attached resolution would need to be approved by the Board authorizing the 
execution of the lease with final adoption at a regular Board meeting upon 10 days' public notice. 
 
Notice shall be given by publication describing the property to be leased, stating the annual lease 
payments, and announcing the Board's intent to authorize the lease at its next regular meeting. 
Board action is requested to tentatively approve the lease with the Watauga County Arts Council; 
approve the resolution authorizing the execution of the lease; and direct staff to provide public 
notice of the Board’s intent to lease the property at 377 Shadowline Drive for one dollar ($1) a 
year for a nine (9) year period to the Watauga County Arts Council to be adopted and approved 
at the Board’s regularly scheduled meeting on August 19, 2014. 
 
 
Board direction is requested.   
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

11



 
 
 
 
 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
To: Deron Geouque, Watauga County Manager 
 
From: Watauga County Arts Council 
       Cherry Johnson, Executive Director 
 
Date:  July 23, 2014 
 
The Watauga County Arts Council would like to be included on the August 5, 2014 Meeting 
Agenda of the Watauga County Commissioners to request that the lease between the Arts 
Council and the Watauga County Commissioners for the building located at 377 Shadowline 
Drive in Boone be renewed.   Our current lease is set to expire on April 15, 2015.    

In May of 2013, having just finalized our lease with the Watauga County Commissioners, the 
Watauga County Arts Council repaired and updated the building.  With the assistance of over 
forty volunteers, we have invested over $23,000 in improving the facility.  A significant portion 
of this was offset by donations from area businesses totaling almost $9,000.  The lease was 
finalized in early May, 2013 and we were able to hold our Grand Opening on June 8, 2013.   

Since then the Blue Ridge ArtSpace has hosted nearly sixty gallery exhibitions showcasing the 
work of artists of all ages and from all parts of the community.  We have begun our visual arts 
workshops and have been able to present ten very successful workshops for community 
members plus a children’s drawing class which meets weekly.  We have processed over two 
hundred sixty  sales through our Gift Shop which features the work of over seventy local artists.  
Through our partnership with the Community Music School, we have been the site of over nine 
hundred hours of music lessons to date.  We have also presented six workshops designed to 
advance the entrepreneurial skills of our working artists through a partnership with Handmade 
in America and Watauga County Economic Development Commission. 

We have hosted monthly 2nd Saturday Celebrations of the Arts  featuring openings for all the 
gallery exhibitions and over seventy artist demonstrations.  We have also held our first arts 
festival and hosted a variety of meetings including the monthly AWE (Appalachian Women 
Entrepreneurs) meetings and the High Country Potters Guild meetings.   

The Blue Ridge ArtSpace has already become the hub of community arts activities for Watauga 
County. As we continue to develop our programming this trend will undoubtedly continue.   

Therefore, in order to continue to offer a wealth of arts-related programming to our 
community, the Watauga County Arts Council would like to request that our current lease be 
renewed for a term of nine (9) years, which we understand to be the maximum length of time 
which is allowable under state law without the lease having to be treated as a sale.  We would 
like to propose that the primary terms of the existing lease in regards to usage, insurance, etc. 
remain the same as those of our current lease.   
 

080514 BCC Meeting

12



080514 BCC Meeting

13



080514 BCC Meeting

14



080514 BCC Meeting

15



080514 BCC Meeting

16



080514 BCC Meeting

17



080514 BCC Meeting

18



080514 BCC Meeting

19



080514 BCC Meeting

20



080514 BCC Meeting

21



080514 BCC Meeting

22



080514 BCC Meeting

23



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

24



AGENDA ITEM 5: 

BID AWARD REQUEST FOR REPAIRS TO THE TRANSFER STATION FLOOR 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. J.V. Potter, Operations Service Director, will present bids for the repairs to the transfer 
station floor.  Mr. Potter received three (3) bids in which Industrial Supply Solutions was the 
lowest responsive bidder in the amount of $88,825.  The proposal would repair approximately 
9,500 square feet of floor space.  The replacement of the floor was discussed during the budget 
process and adequate funds are available for the expense.   
 
Staff recommends approval and award of the bid to Industrial Supply Solutions in the amount of 
$88,825 for repairs to the transfer station floor.   
 
Board action is required.   
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

25



MEMO SANITATION DEPARTMENT 

7/ 22/ 2014 

To: Deron Geoque, County Manager 

From:JV Potter, OSD 

Re: Transfer Station Floor Repair Quotes 

...... \ 
. ·~·· ..:'\ \ 

.... · ... '':~ -.~~~\ 
- ~·rt;;'@J~ 

·-\~~ .. 
\ \ 1 1\l\~ 
'~ ~\ \\)\. 1 
~~~ v 

We have received three proposals for the repair of the transfer station floor and they are as 

follows: 

Area to be repaired- 9500 square feet: 

Industrial Supply Solutions Inc.- $9.35/sq ft.= $88,825.00 

Leak Associates Incorporated- $13.16 /sq ft.= $125,000.00 

Tufco Carol inas, lnc.-$15.00/ sq ft.=$142,500.00 

The Sanitation Department has sufficient funds in the current budget to cover the cost of the 

repai r. We would like to recommend Industrial Supply Solutions, Inc. to be awarded the bid in 

the amount of $88,825.00 as they are the low bidder. All quotes have a five year warranty. 

Please advise. 

080514 BCC Meeting

26



AGENDA ITEM 6: 

REQUEST TO SCHEDULE A PUBLIC HEARING TO ALLOW FOR CITIZEN COMMENT 
REGARDING PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO THE ORDINANCE TO GOVERN HEIGHT 
OF STRUCTURES IN WATAUGA COUNTY 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Furman, Planning and Inspections Director, will request the Board schedule a public hearing 
to seek public input on an amendment to the County’s building height ordinance.  Blue Ridge 
Mountain Club made a request to the Planning Board for the amendment.  After review and 
consideration the Planning Board voted to recommend the ordinance change to the Board of 
Commissioners.   
 
The amendment would simplify the method used to determine building height and allow the 
applicant an option to utilize the method as specified by the North Carolina Building and 
Residential Codes.  No change would be made to the 40 foot height limitation. 
 
A copy of the current ordinance, the recommended amendment, and the request from Blue Ridge 
Mountain Club are attached.  A public hearing is required prior to amending the ordinance.  
Should the Board wish to consider the amendment, staff would recommend the public hearing be 
scheduled for the September 16, 2014, Board meeting.  Mr. Furman will be present to answer 
any questions. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board. 
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

27



080514 BCC Meeting

28



080514 BCC Meeting

29



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 

COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 

 
AMENDMENT TO ORDINANCE TO GOVERN THE  
HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES IN WATAUGA COUNTY 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Watauga County adopted the Ordinance to 
Govern Height of Structures in Watauga County in 1983 in conjunction with the Mountain Ridge 
Protection Act; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Mountain Ridge Protection Act defines “tall buildings or structures” as 
any building, structure or unit within a multi unit building with a vertical height of more than 40 
feet measured from the top of the foundation of said building; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Article I of Watauga County’s Ordinance to Govern the Height of Structures 
in Watauga County, as originally written, stated that “no building intended for dwelling use, 
may be constructed in Watauga County which building or structure will have a vertical height of 
more than 40 feet measured from the grade at the entrance to the structure to the highest 
point of the roof assembly; such building may not have more than 1 story below this entrance 
grade “; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Watauga County’s Ordinance to Govern the Height of Structures in Watauga 
County was amended in 1987 to incorporate the term “top of the foundation” from the 
Mountain Protection Act by replacing the above-referenced language in Article I to provide that 
“no building or structure intended for dwelling use may be constructed, reconstructed or 
remodeled with a vertical height of more than 40 feet measured from the top of the foundation 
of said building or structure to the highest point of the roof assembly; such building or structure 
may not have more than 1 story below this entrance grade”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the issue of determining allowable building height was complicated in 2009 
when the NC Building Code and NC Residential Code were amended so that basements were no 
longer considered for purposes of determining allowable building heights, which resulted in the 
County adopting an additional amendment to the Ordinance; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in the amendment which was adopted by the County in 2009, the County 
modified Article I of the Ordinance stating that “no building or structure intended for dwelling 
use may be constructed, reconstructed or remodeled with a vertical height of more than 40 
feet measured from the top of the foundation of said building or structure as defined by the NC 
Building Code and NC Residential Code to the highest point of the roof assembly”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, neither the Mountain Ridge Protection Act, nor the NC Building Code, nor 
the Ordinance to Govern the Height of Structures in Watauga County provide a specific 
definition of “top of the foundation”, which is the origin for vertical measurement, and this lack 
of clarity has led to confusion when determining heights on steeply sloping topography; and 
 
 
 

DRAFT 
080514 BCC Meeting

30



 
 
 WHEREAS, in order to provide clarity, consistency, and fairness to property owners in 
Watauga County, and in order to further promote the general welfare and safety of the citizens 
of Watauga County, the Board of Commissioners has determined that it would be necessary 
and appropriate to amend the Ordinance with respect to defining the method of calculation of 
building height as set forth in Article I of the Ordinance.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, the Watauga County Board of Commissioners do hereby ordain, 
adopt and establish the following amendment to the Ordinance to Govern the Height of 
Structures in Watauga County: 
 
1.)  Article I - Regulation of Height of Structures is hereby deleted in its entirety and the 
following is hereby substituted in lieu thereof: 
 
ARTICLE I - REGULATION OF HEIGHT OF STRUCTURES 
No building or structure intended for dwelling use may be constructed, reconstructed, or 
remodeled with a vertical height of more than 40 feet.  For purposes of calculating vertical 
height, the applicant may elect to use either of the following two methods:   
  

(1) 40 feet measured vertically from the highest point of the roof to the highest point of 
finished grade within 6 feet horizontally of an exterior wall, or   
 

 (2) 40 feet measured vertically from the average height of the highest roof surface to the  
 “grade plane” as defined in the NC Residential Code and NC Building Code.  

 
 Excluded from this ordinance are the following: 

(a) Water, radio, television, or telephone towers or any equipment for the transmission 
of electricity or communications, or both. 
(b) Structures which are slender in nature and minor vertical projections of a parent 
building including chimneys, flag poles, flues, spires, steeples, belfries, cupolas, 
antennas, poles, wires or windmills, provided that part of the structure which is higher 
than 40 feet is no intended for human habitation.   

 
 2.)  Except as specifically amended herein, all other terms and provisions of the Ordinance, 

which was adopted in August of 2009 and further amended on February 18, 2014, shall remain 
in full force and effect.  

 
ADOPTED this the ___ day of ___________________, 2014. 

 
 

 
      
Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
Watauga County Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: 
      
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

080514 BCC Meeting

31



080514 BCC Meeting

32



080514 BCC Meeting

33



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

34



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
A. Bid Award Request for Truck Purchase 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Robert Marsh, Maintenance Director, will present bids for the purchase of one (1) 2015 Ford 
F250 4x4 pickup truck.  Mr. Marsh received three (3) bids in which Boone Ford was the lowest 
responsive bidder in the amount of $22,623.02.   
 
Board action is requested to award the bid to Boone Ford for one (1) 2015 Ford F250 4X4 
pickup truck in the amount of $22,623.02 plus $684.69 for tax and tag, for a total amount of 
$23,307.71.  Adequate funds have been budgeted to cover the expenditure. 
 
Board action is required.   
  

080514 BCC Meeting

35



080514 BCC Meeting

36



080514 BCC Meeting

37



080514 BCC Meeting

38



080514 BCC Meeting

39



080514 BCC Meeting

40



080514 BCC Meeting

41



080514 BCC Meeting

42



AGENDA ITEM 7: 

MAINTENANCE MATTERS 
B. Proposed Contract for Architectural Services for Medics Base #3 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the May 7, 2014 Board meeting, a motion was made to employ Innovative Designs as the 
architects for the new medic base and to authorize staff to negotiate a contract to be approved at 
a future meeting.  Negotiations have been completed and the recommended contract is included 
for review and approval by the Board.  Staff was able to negotiate a fixed fee of $45,000, which 
protects the County should the project come in higher than budgeted.  The current budget for the 
project is $667,000 of which $126,000 has been spent for land and preliminary engineering.   
 
The County Attorney has reviewed the contract.  Staff recommends the Board approve the 
contract with Innovative Designs in the amount of $45,000 for architectural services for the new 
medic base. 
 
Board action is required. 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

43



080514 BCC Meeting

44



I nit. 

AlA Document 8101™- 2007 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of July in the year 2014 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

BETWEEN the Architect's client identified as the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
814 West King St. 
Boone, NC 28607 
Telephone Number: 828-265-8000 
Fax Number: 828-264-3230 

and the Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Innovative Design, Inc. 
850 West Morgan Street 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
Telephone Number: 919-832-6303 
Fax Number: 919-832-3339 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

1403- Watauga County Medic Base 3 
Intersection ofUS Highway 321 and Willowdale Church Rd. ; Vilas, NC 

The Owner and Architect agree as follows . 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 

The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 

completion. The author may also 

have revised the text of the original 

AlA standard form. An Additions and 

Deletions Report that notes added 

information as well as revisions to 

the standard form text is available 

from the author and should be 

reviewed. A vertical line in the left 

margin of this document indicates 

where the author has added 

necessary information and where 

the author has added to or deleted 

from the original AlA text. 

This document has important legal 

consequences. Consultation with an 

attorney is encouraged with respect 

to its completion or modification. 

AlA Document 81 OFM- 2007 ~ormerly B15FM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

1 

080514 BCC Meeting

45



I nit. 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

INITIAL INFORMATION 

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 

4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

6 COST OF THE WORK 

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

11 COMPENSATION 

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

EXHIBIT A INITIAL INFORMATION 

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 Thi s Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Article 1 and in optional Exhibit A, Initial 
Information: 
(Complete Exhibit A, Initial Information, and incorporate it into the Agreement at Section 13.2, or state below 
Initial Information such as details of the Project 's site and program, Owner's contractors and consultants, 
Architect's consultants, Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, authorized representatives, anticipated 
procurement method, and other information relevant to the Project.) 

§ 1.2 The Owner's anticipated dates for commencement of construction and Substantial Completion of the Work are 
set forth below: 

.1 Commencement of construction date: 

January 5, 2015 

.2 Substantial Completion date: 

September 8, 201 5 

§ 1.3 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that such 
information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the 
schedule, the Arch itect's services and the Architect's compensation. 

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide the professional services as set forth in this Agreement. 

AlA Document 81 OFM - 2007 ~onnerly B15FM - 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/201 5, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

2 

080514 BCC Meeting

46



I nit. 

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional ski ll and care ordinarily provided by 
architects practicing in the same or simi lar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall 
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of 
the Project. 

§ 2.3 The Architect shall identifY a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the 
Project. 

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner's knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect ' s professional 
judgment with respect to this Project. 

§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance for the duration of this Agreement. If any of the 
requirements set forth below exceed the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall 
reimburse the Architect for any additional cost: 
(IdentifY types and limits of insurance coverage, and other insurance requirements applicable to the Agreement, if 
any.) 

.1 General Liability 

$1,000,000 each; $2,000,000 general aggregated 

.2 Automobi le Liability 

$1 ,000,000 

.3 Workers' Compensation 

$500,000 

.4 Professional Liability 

$1,000,000 

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 
§ 3.1 The Architect's Basic Services consist of those described in Article 3 and include usual and customary 
structural , mechanical , and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Additional 
Services. 

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect's services, consult with the Owner, research applicable design 
criteria, attend Project meetings, communicate with members of the Project team and report progress to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner' s 
consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on the accuracy and completeness of services and information 
furnished by the Owner and the Owner' s consultants. The Architect shall provide prompt written notice to the 
Owner ifthe Architect becomes aware of any error, omission or inconsistency in such services or information. 

§ 3.1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner's approval a 
schedule for the performance of the Architect's services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the 
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. 
The schedule shal l include allowances for periods oftime required for the Owner's review, for the performance of 
the Owner's consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once 
approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded 
by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner's approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the 
Project proceeds until the commencement of construction. 

AlA Document B10FM- 2007 ~onnerly B15FM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
ofthis AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

3 

080514 BCC Meeting

47



I nit. 

§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner's directive or substitution made without the Architect's 
approval. 

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall, at appropriate times, contact the governmental authorities required to approve the 
Construction Documents and the entities providing utility services to the Project. In designing the Project, the 
Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements imposed by such governmental authorities and by such 
entities providing utility services. 

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents 
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

In addition to the services enumerated in the Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, 
Innovative Design shall provide the following as part of our Basic Services: 
Programming: · ID shall conduct one meeting with key players in Watauga plus follow-up as 

necessary. 

Multiple Designs: 
Civil Engineering 

Interior Design 

Value Engineering 

Cost Estimate 
As-Builts 

Telecommunications 

Commissioning 

ID will provide written documents detailing goals and objectives that result from 
the input received. 
ID shall provide two schematic floor plan options. 
Only coordination with Valor that handles all design 10' outside building. 
There is no other civil design in ill's contract. 
ID shall list finishes (including colors of walls, ceilings, and floor finishes). 
ID's electrical engineer shall specify light fixtures. 
ID shall not provide services relative to furniture or furnishing selections. 
ID shall provide energy simulations and LCC analysis of various viable energy 
alternatives (including daylighting options and mechanical systems). 
ID shall provide a cost estimate. 
ID shall obtain the final marked up changes from the GC and shall develop a 
CAD document for Record Drawings. 
Elm Engineering has included running CAT6 wiring from outlets to a 
centralized communications patch panel. Elm has not included any work 
associated with developing an emergency call system 
Commissioning efforts would be limited to typical services provided during 
substantial and final inspections. 

§ 3.2 SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review 
laws, codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect's services. 

§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the Cost 
of the Work, Project site, and the proposed procurement or delivery method and other Initial Information, each in 
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any 
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other information or consulting services that may be 
reasonably needed for the Project. 

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner 
alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project, including the feasibility of incorporating 
environmentally responsible design approaches. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the Owner 
regarding the requirements of the Project. 

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project's requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present for 
the Owner's approval a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner's approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner's approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may 

AlA Document 81 OFM- 2007 ~onnerly B16FM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

4 

080514 BCC Meeting

48



I nit. 

include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital modeling. Preliminary selections of 
major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing. 

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider environmentally responsible design alternatives, such as material choices and 
building orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that 
is consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain other 
environmentally responsible design services under Article 4. 

§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together 
with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent 
with the Owner' s program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. 

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with 
Section 6.3. 

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner ' s 
approval. 

§ 3.3 DESIGN DEVELOPMENT PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner's approval ofthe Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner's authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Design Development Documents for the Owner' s approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building 
systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical systems, and such other elements as may be appropriate. The Design Development Documents shall also 
include outline specifications that identifY major materials and systems and establish in general their quality levels. 

§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work. 

§ 3.3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any 
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner's approval. 

§ 3.4 CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENTS PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner' s written approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner's 
authorization of any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect 
shall prepare Construction Documents for the Owner' s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings 
and Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the 
construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor 
will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals, 
which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4. 

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate into the Construction Documents the design requirements of governmental 
authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the 
development and preparation of (1) bidding and procurement information that describes the time, place and 
conditions ofbidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2) the form of agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor; and (3) the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General , Supplementary and other Conditions). 
The Architect shall also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and 
Specifications and may include bidding requirements and sample forms. 

§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work. 

AlA Document 81 01fM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151fM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an appl ication that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

5 

080514 BCC Meeting

49



I nit. 

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments 
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5 , and request the Owner's 
approval. 

§ 3.5 BIDDING OR NEGOTIATION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.5.1 GENERAL 
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner's 
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive 
bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid 
or proposal, if any; and, ( 4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 

§ 3.5.2 COMPETITIVE BIDDING 
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by 
.1 procuring the reproduction of Bidding Documents for distribution to prospective bidders; 
.2 distributing the Bidding Documents to prospective bidders, requesting their return upon completion 

of the bidding process, and maintaining a log of distribution and retrieval and of the amounts of 
deposits, if any, received from and returned to prospective bidders; 

.3 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospective bidders; 

.4 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and 
interpretations of the Bidding Documents to all prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and 

.5 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing 
the bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

§ 3.5.2.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifYing approved substitutions to all prospective bidders. 

§ 3.5.3 NEGOTIATED PROPOSALS 
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by 
.1 procuring the reproduction of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors, and 

requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process; 
.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; and 
.3 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary 

report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 

§ 3.5.3.3 The Architect shall consider requests for substitutions, if the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, and 
shall prepare and distribute addenda identifYing approved substitutions to all prospective contractors. 

§ 3.6 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES 
§ 3.6.1 GENERAL 
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration ofthe Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set 
forth below and in AlA Document A201™-2007, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner 
and Contractor modifY AlA Document A201- 2007, those modifications shall not affect the Architect' s services 
under this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement. 

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The 
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The 
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibi lity for the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the 
Architect be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect's negligent acts or omissions, but shall not 
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other 
persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

AlA Document 81 01TM- 2007 ~ormerly B151TM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved . WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties , and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale . 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

6 

080514 BCC Meeting

50



I nit. 

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.3, the Architect's responsibility to provide Construction Phase Services commences 
with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date the Architect issues the final Certificate 
for Payment. 

§ 3.6.2 EVALUATIONS OF THE WORK 
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise 
required in Section 4.3.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work 
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On 
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of 
the portion of the Work completed, and report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract Documents and 
from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (2) defects and deficiencies observed in 
the Work. 

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever 
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection or 
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not such Work is 
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith 
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, their agents or employees or other persons or entities 
performing portions of the Work. 

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect's response to such requests 
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable 
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall act in the best interests of the Owner and render decisions in good faith. 

§ 3.6.2.5 

§ 3.6.3 CERTIFICATES FOR PAYMENT TO CONTRACTOR 
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certifY the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 
amounts. The Architect's certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the 
Architect ' s evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor's 
Application for Payment, that, to the best oftpe Architect's knowledge, information and belief, the Work has 
progressed to the point indicated and that the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents. 
The foregoing representations are subject (1) to an evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract 
Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) to results of subsequent tests and inspections, (3) to correction of 
minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to completion, and ( 4) to specific qualifications expressed by 
the Architect. 

§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has(!) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies of requisitions received from 
Subcontractors and material suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor' s right to 
payment, or ( 4) ascertained how or for what purpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of 
the Contract Sum. 

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 

§ 3.6.4 SUBMITTALS 
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor' s submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or 
withhold approval. The Architect's action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the approved 

AlA Document B10FM- 2007 ~onnerly B151fM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. Al l rights 
reserved . WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

7 

080514 BCC Meeting

51



I nit. 

submittal schedule or, in the absence of an approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while allowing 
sufficient time in the Architect's professional judgment to permit adequate review. 

§ 3.6.4.2 In accordance with the Architect-approved submittal schedule, the Architect shall review and approve or 
take other appropriate action upon the Contractor's submittals such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, 
but only for the limited purpose of checking for conformance with information given and the design concept 
expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is not for the purpose of determining the accuracy 
and completeness of other information such as dimensions, quantities, and installation or performance of equipment 
or systems, which are the Contractor's responsibi lity. The Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety 
precautions or, unless otherwise specifically stated by the Architect, of any construction means, methods, 
techniques, sequences or procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an 
assembly of which the item is a component. 

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review Shop 
Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the design professional retained by the 
Contractor that bear such professional's seal and signature when submitted to the Architect. The Architect shall be 
entitled to rely upon the adequacy, accuracy and completeness of the services, certifications and approvals 
performed or provided by such design professionals. 

§ 3.6.4.4 Subject to the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information 
about the Contract Documents. The Architect shall set forth in the Contract Documents the requirements for requests 
for information. Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the 
specific Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The 
Architect's response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with 
reasonable promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and 
Specifications in response to requests for information. 

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.5 CHANGES IN THE WORK 
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract 
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to 
the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the 
Owner's written approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. 

§ 3.6.6 PROJECT COMPLETION 
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the 
date of final completion; issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; receive from the Contractor and forward to 
the Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents required by the Contract 
Documents and assembled by the Contractor; and issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection 
indicating the Work complies with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect's inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
Contractor of Work to be completed or corrected. 

§ 3.6.6.3 When the Work is found to be substantially complete, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the 
balance of the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the 
Contract Sum, if any, for final completion or correction of the Work. 

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) 

AlA Document 8101 TM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 TM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

' 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

8 

080514 BCC Meeting

52



I nit. 

affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens or bonds indemnifYing the Owner against liens; and (3) any other 
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.6.5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial 
Completion, the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the 
facility operations and performance. 

ARTICLE 4 ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Additional Services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The 
Architect shall provide the listed Additional Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the 
Architect's responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. 
(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third 
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4. 2 or in an attached exhibit. If in an exhibit, 
identify the exhibit.) 

Note 2: See Section 3.1.6 for services provided within Basic Services. 

Additional Services Responsibility Location of Service Description 
(Architect, Owner (Section 4.2 below or in an exhibit 

or attached to this document and 
Not Provided) identified below) 

I § 4.1.1 Programming (B202TM_2Q09) See Note #2 
§ 4.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs 
§ 4.1.3 Measured drawings 

_§_ 4.1.4 Existing facilities surveys 
§ 4.1.5 Site Evaluation and Planning (B203™- 2007) 
§ 4.1.6 Building Information Modeling 

(E2Q2TM_2Q08) 

I § 4.1.7 Civil engineering See Owner Note 1 
_§_ 4.1.8 Landscape design 
_§_ 4.1.9 Architectural Interior Design (B252™- 2007) 
§ 4.1.10 Value Analysis (B204™- 2007) 
§ 4.1.11 Detailed cost estimating 
§ 4.1.12 On-site Project Representation (B207™- 2008) 
§ 4.1.13 Conformed construction documents 
§ 4.1.14 As-Designed Record drawings 
§ 4.1.15 As-Constructed Record drawings 
§ 4.1.16 Post occupancy evaluation 
§ 4.1.17 Facility Support Services (B2IQTM_2007) 

_§ 4.1.18 Tenant-related services 
§ 4.1.19 Coordination of Owner's consultants 
§ 4.1.20 Telecommunications/data design 
§ 4.1.21 Security Evaluation and Planning 

(B206™- 2007) 
§ 4.1.22 Commissioning (B211™-2007) 
§ 4.1.23 Extensive environmentally responsible design 

_§_ 4.1.24 LEEDQ;> Certification (B214™- 2012) 
§ 4.1.25 Fast-track design services 
§ 4.1.26 Historic Preservation (B205™-2007) 
§ 4.1.27 Furniture, Furnishings, and Equipment Design 

(B253™- 2007) 

Owner Note 1: Any work required regarding Civil Engineering including finish grades and temporary and 
permanent seeding shall be the responsibility of Valor Engineering, PLLC through a separate Contract with the 
Owner. 

AlA Document 8101 TM - 2007 ~onnerly 8151 TM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties , and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

9 

080514 BCC Meeting

53



I nit. 

§ 4.2 Insert a description of each Additional Service designated in Section 4.1 as the Architect' s responsibility, if not 
further described in an exhibit attached to this document. 

§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement. 
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with 
this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in 
the Architect's schedule. Except as noted in 4.3.2, Additional Services shall only be rendered by the Architect 
pursuant to a written Change Order to provide such additional services. Any services provided without first 
obtaining a written Change Order shall not entitle the Architect to any additional compensation. 

§ 4.3.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notifY the 
Owner with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect 
shall not proceed to provide the following services until the Architect receives the Owner's written authorization: 

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given 
by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including, but not limited to, size, quality, 
complexity, the Owner's schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery 
method; 

.2 Services necessitated by the Owner ' s request for extensive environmentally responsible design 
alternatives, such as unique system designs, in-depth material research, energy modeling, or LEED® 
certification; 

.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by the enactment or 
revision of codes, laws or regulations or official interpretations; 

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure 
of performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner's consultants or contractors; 

.5 Preparing digital data for transmission to the Owner's consultants and contractors, or to other Owner 
authorized recipients; 

.6 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the 
Owner; 

.7 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; 

.8 Preparation for , and attendance at a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where 
the Architect is party thereto; 

.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of bidders or persons providing proposals; 

.10 Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction; 
or 

.11 Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect. 

§ 4.3.2 Reserved. 
To avoid delay in the Construction phase, the Architect may receive Additional Services associated with time 
required to address problems identified in the field , that necessitate timely action . In this case, the Architect wi ll, 
with reasonable promptness, notifY the Owner 

§ 4.3.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional 
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notifY the Owner: 

.1 Three ( 3 ) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of 
the Contractor 

.2 Seven ( 7 ) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during construction 

.3 One ( 1 ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work 
is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 

.4 One ( 1 ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion 

AlA Document 8101 TM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 rM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 10 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent poss ible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale . 

' 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

54



I nit. 

§ 4.3.4 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed within ( ) months of the date of 
this Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect's services beyond that time shall be 
compensated as Additional Services. 

ARTICLE 5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program which shall set forth the 
Owner's objectives, schedule, constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships, flexibility, 
expandability, special equipment, systems and site requirements. Within 15 days after receipt of a written request 
from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to 
evaluate, give notice of or enforce lien rights. 

§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish and periodically update the Owner's budget for the Project, including (1) the budget 
for the Cost of the Work as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner' s other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies 
related to all of these costs. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's budget for the Cost of the 
Work, the Owner shall notifY the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a con·esponding 
change in the Project' s scope and quality. 

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identifY a representative authorized to act on the Owner' s behalf with respect to the Project. 
The Owner shall render decisions upon the Architect's submittals in writing in a timely manner in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect's services. 

§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions and necessary data with respect to existing buildings, other improvements 
and trees; and information concerning avai lable utility services and lines, both public and private, above and below 
grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a Project benchmark. 

§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include but are not limited to test 
borings, test pits, determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic 
evaluation, ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil 
conditions, with written reports and appropriate recommendations. 

§ 5.6 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. 
Upon the Architect's request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the 
Owner and the Owner' s consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated 
in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional Service, when the Architect requests 
such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope of the Project. The Owner shall 
require that its consultants maintain professional liability insurance as appropriate to the services provided. 

§ 5.7 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Documents, such as 
structural , mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials. 

§ 5.8 The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner ' s needs and interests. 

§ 5.9 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect ifthe Owner becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's Instruments of Service. 

§ 5.10 Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, or when direct communications have been specially 
authorized, the Owner shall endeavor to communicate with the Contractor and the Architect' s consultants through 
the Architect about matters arising out of or relating to the Contract Documents. The Owner shall promptly notifY 
the Architect of any direct communications that may affect the Architect's services. 

AlA Document B1 01 TM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 TM- 1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 11 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/2212014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expi res on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

55



I nit. 

§ 5.11 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect's duties and 
responsibi lities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect's services set forth in this Agreement. 
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor, 
including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 

§ 5.12 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and 
shall obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. 

§ 5.13 The Owner shall provide the services of a Civil Engineer currently identified as Valor Engineering, PLLC. 

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK 
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors' general conditions costs, 
overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation ofthe Architect, the costs of the land, 
rights-of-way, financing, contingencies for changes in the Work or other costs that are the responsibility of the 
Owner. 

§ 6.2 The Owner' s budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and may be adjusted 
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner's budget for the Cost of 
the Work, the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the Work prepared 
by the Architect, represent the Architect's judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, that neither 
the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost oflabor, materials or equipment; the Contractor's methods of 
determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the Architect cannot 
and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner' s budget for the Cost 
of the Work or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work or evaluation prepared or agreed to by the Architect. 

§ 6.3 In preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for 
design, bidding and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems and types of 
construction are to be included in the Contract Documents; to make reasonable adjustments in the program and 
scope of the Project; and to include in the Contract Documents alternate bids as may be necessary to adjust the 
estimated Cost of the Work to meet the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work. The Architect's estimate of the 
Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, volume or simi lar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner 
requests detailed cost estimating services, the Arch itect shall provide such services as an Additional Service under 
Article 4. 

§ 6.4 If the Bidding or Negotiation Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the Architect submits the 
Construction Documents to the Owner, through no fault of the Architect, the Owner's budget for the Cost of the 
Work shall be adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market. 

§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect' s estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner's budget for the Cost of the 
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project's size, quality or 
budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments. 

§ 6.6 If the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase 
Services is exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal , the Owner shall 

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work; 

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time; 

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5; 

.4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce 
the Cost of the Work; or 

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. 

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect, without additional compensation, shall 
modifY the Construction Documents as necessary to comply with the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the 
conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6.6.1. The 
Architect's modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect's responsibility under this 
Article 6. 

AlA Document 8101 TM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 rM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

"1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

12 

080514 BCC Meeting

56



I nit. 

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 7.1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the 
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to 
transmit such information for its use on the Project. If the Owner and Architect intend to transmit Instruments of 
Service or any other information or documentation in digital form, they shall endeavor to establish necessary 
protocols governing such transmissions. 

§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution oflnstruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication 
in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect's consultants. 

§ 7.3 Upon execution of this Agreement, the Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the 
Architect' s Instruments ofService solely and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering 
and adding to the Project, provided that the Owner substantially performs its obligations, including prompt payment 
of all sums when due, under this Agreement. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the 
Architect' s consultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to 
authorize the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and material or equipment suppliers, as well as the 
Owner's consultants and separate contractors, to reproduce applicable portions of the Instruments of Service solely 
and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the Architect rightfully terminates 
this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this Section 7.3 shall terminate. 

§ 7 .3. 1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the author of the Instruments of 
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect' s consultant(s) from all claims and causes of action arising 
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnifY and hold harmless the 
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes 
of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner' s use of 
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner 
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9.4. 

§ 7.4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied 
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 
Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect' s 
consultants. 

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 8.1 GENERAL 
§ 8. 1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action, whether in contract, tort, or 
otherwise, against the other arising out of or related to this Agreement in accordance with the requirements of the 
method of binding dispute resolution selected in this Agreement within the period specified by applicable law, but in 
any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion ofthe Work. The Owner and Architect 
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1. 

(Paragraph deleted) 
§ 8.1 .3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes or other matters in question 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential 
damages due to either party' s termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7. 

§ 8.2 MEDIATION 
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien 

AlA Document B10PM- 2007 ~onnerly B15PM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and wi ll be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expi res on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

13 

080514 BCC Meeting

57



I nit. 

arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with 
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution. 

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered in accordance with the 
rules for mediated settlement conferences for Superior Court matters within the State ofNorth Carolina. A request 
for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the Agreement, and filed with the person or 
entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of a complaint or other 
appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in advance of binding 
dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of 
filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is 
stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree 
upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator 's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the 
County where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereo£ 

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8.2, the method of binding 
dispute resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box. If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution below, 
or do not subsequently agree in writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will 
be resolved in a court of competent jurisdiction.) 

Arbitration pursuant to Section 8.3 of this Agreement 

[ XX ) Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

Other (Specify) 

§ 8.3 ARBITRATION 
§ 8.3.1 If the parties have selected arbitration as the method for binding dispute resolution in this Agreement, any 
claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement subject to, but not resolved by, 
mediation shall be subject to arbitration which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by 
the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Arbitration Rules in effect on the 
pate of this Agreement. A demand for arbitration shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this 
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the arbitration. 

§ 8.3.1.1 A demand for arbitration shall be made no earlier than concurrently with the filing of a request for 
mediation, but in no event shall it be made after the date when the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based 
on the claim, dispute or other matter in question would be barred by the applicable statute of! imitations. For statute 
of limitations purposes, receipt of a written demand for arbitration by the person or entity administering the 
arbitration shall constitute the institution oflegal or equitable proceedings based on the claim, dispute or other 
matter in question. 

§ 8.3.2 The foregoing agreement to arbitrate and other agreements to arbitrate with an additional person or entity 
duly consented to by parties to this Agreement shall be specifically enforceable in accordance with applicable law in 
any court having jurisdiction thereo£ 

§ 8.3.3 The award rendered by the arbitrator(s) shall be final, and judgment may be entered upon it in accordance 
with applicable law in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 8.3.4 CONSOLIDATION OR JOINDER 
§ 8.3.4.1 Either party, at its sole discretion, may consolidate an arbitration conducted under this Agreement with any 
other arbitration to which it is a party provided that (1) the arbitration agreement governing the other arbitration 

AlA Document B1 01 TM- 2007 ~onnerly B151 TM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale . 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

14 

080514 BCC Meeting

58



I nit. 

permits consolidation; (2) the arbitrations to be consolidated substantially involve common questions oflaw or fact; 
and (3) the arbitrations employ materially similar procedural rules and methods for selecting arbitrator(s). 

§ 8.3.4.2 Either party, at its sole discretion, may include by joinder persons or entities substantially involved in a 
common question of law or fact whose presence is required if complete relief is to be accorded in arbitration, 
provided that the party sought to be joined consents in writing to such joinder. Consent to arbitration involving an 
additional person or entity shall not constitute consent to arbitration of any claim, dispute or other matter in question 
not described in the written consent. 

§ 8.3.4.3 The Owner and Architect grant to any person or entity made a party to an arbitration conducted under this 
Section 8.3, whether by joinder or consolidation, the same rights of joinder and consolidation as the Owner and 
Architect under this Agreement. 

ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 9.1 Ifthe Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for termination or, at the Architect's option, cause for suspension 
of performance of services under this Agreement. Ifthe Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give 
seven days' written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the 
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of 
services. Before resuming services, the Architect shall be paid all sums due prior to suspension and any expenses 
incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the remaining 
services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of 
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the remaining services and the time 
schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days' written notice. 

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perform in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating 
the termination. 

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Architect for the 
Owner's convenience and without cause. 

§ 9.6 In the event of termination not the fault of the Architect, the Architect shall be compensated for services 
performed prior to termination, together with Reimbursable Expenses then due and all Termination Expenses as 
defined in Section 9.7. 

§ 9.7 Termination Expenses are in addition to compensation for the Architect's services and include expenses 
directly attributable to termination for which the Architect is not otherwise compensated, plus an amount for the 
Architect's anticipated profit on the value of the services not performed by the Architect. 

§ 9.8 The Owner's rights to use the Architect's Instruments of Service in the event of a termination of this 
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 11.9. 

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, except that if the 
parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern 
Section 8.3. 

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AlA Document A20 1- 2007, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 

AlA Document B101'M- 2007 ~onnerly B151'M -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 15 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

59



I nit. 

§ 10.3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for 
the Project if the lender agrees to assume the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement. 

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests 
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute 
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the 
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or 
consents that would require knowledge, services or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement. 

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor 
of a third party against either the Owner or Architect. 

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any 
form at the Project site. 

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the 
Project among the Architect's promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable 
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect' s materials shall not include 
the Owner' s confidential or proprietary information if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of 
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide 
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner's promotional materials for the Project. 

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as "confidential" or 
"business proprietary," the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it 
to any other person except to (1) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order 
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors 
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information. Notwithstanding the provisions 
of this section, the parties acknowledge that Owner is a political subdivision of the State ofNorth Carolina, and is 
subject to the public records laws as set forth in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132-1 et seq. As such, any information subject to 
the laws governing the disclosure of documents in the possession of a governmental body shall prevail over the 
terms of this section. In the event a request is made for documents marked 'Confidential ' by the Architect, the 
Owner shall provide twenty days notice to Architect of the request and allow Architect an opportunity to object to 
the production of such document. In the event the document is not produced at Architect's request and litigation 
ensures for production of that document, Architect agrees to indemnifY and hold harmless Owner from any and all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, which may be incurred related to the 'Confidential ' 
document. 

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION 
§ 11.1 For the Architect's Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as 
follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 

A fixed fee of$45,000.00 (forty-five thousand dollars), including engineering services (except Civil Engineering). 

§ 11.2 For Additional Services designated in Section 4.1, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 
compensation apply.) 

Principals: 
Architects/Engineers: 
Energy Analysts: 
CADD: 

$135/hour 
$100/hour 
$100/hour 
$ 90/hour 

AlA Document 8101 TM- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 TM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 16 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may resu lt in severe civil and crimina l penalties , and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

60



I nit. 

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.3, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 

Principals: 
Architects/Engineers: 
Energy Analysts: 
CADD: 

$135/hour 
$100/hour 
$100/hour 
$ 90/hour 

§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services ofthe Architect's consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or 
11 .3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus zero percent ( 0 %), or as otherwise stated below: 

§ 11.5 Where compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or percentage of the Cost of the Work, 
the compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: 

Schematic Design Phase Twenty percent 20 %) 
Design Development Phase Ten percent 10 %) 
Construction Documents Thirty-five percent 35 %) 
Phase 
Bidding or Negotiation Phase Five percent 5 %) 
Construction Phase Thirty percent 30 %) 

Total Basic Compensation one hundred percent 100 %) 

§ 11.6 When compensation is based on a percentage ofthe Cost ofthe Work and any portions ofthe Project are 
deleted or otherwise not constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent 
services are performed on those portions, in accordance with the schedule set forth in Section 11.5 based on (1) the 
lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal , or (2) if no such bid or proposal is received, the most recent estimate of 
the Cost of the Work for such portions of the Project. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance 
with this Agreement for all services performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced. 

§ 11.7 The hourly bi lling rates for services of the Architect and the Architect's consultants, if any, are set forth 
below. The rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect 's and Architect ' s consultants' normal review 
practices. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

Principals: 
Architects/Engineers: 
Energy Analysts: 
CADD: 

Employee or Category 

$135/hour 
$100/hour 
$1 00/hour 
$ 90/hour 

Rate 

§ 11 .8 COMPENSATION FOR REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES 
§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic and Additional Services and include 
expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect's consultants directly related to the Project, as fo llows: 

.1 Transportation and authorized out-of-town travel and subsistence; 

.2 Long distance services, dedicated data and communication services, teleconferences, Project Web 
sites, and extranets; 

.3 Fees paid for securing approval of authorities having jurisdiction over the Project; 

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, standard form documents; 

.5 Postage, handling and delivery; 

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner; 

AlA Document 81 01'M- 2007 ~onnerly 8151 rM- 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects . Al l rights 
reserved. WARNING: This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties , and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

' 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

17 

080514 BCC Meeting

61



I nit. 

.7 Renderings, models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials requested by 
the Owner; 

.8 Architect's Consultant's expense of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this 
Project, or the expense of additional insurance coverage or limits if the Owner requests such 
insurance in excess of that normally carried by the Architect's consultants; 

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; 

.10 Site office expenses; and 

.11 Other similar Project-related expenditures. 

§ 11 .8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect's consultants plus zero percent ( 0 %) of the expenses incurred. 

§ 11.9 COMPENSATION FOR USE OF ARCHITECT'S INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE 
If the Owner terminates the Architect for its convenience under Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this 
Agreement under Section 9.3 , the Owner shall pay a licensing fee as compensation for the Owner' s continued use of 
the Architect's Instruments of Service solely for purposes of completing, using and maintaining the Project as 
follows: 

None 

§ 11.10 PAYMENTS TO THE ARCHITECT 
§ 11.10.1 An initial payment of zero ($ 0.00 ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the 
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner's account in the final invoice. 

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services 
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid forty ( 
40 ) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal 
rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 

8 % per annum 

§ 11.10.3 The Owner shall not withhold amounts from the Architect's compensation to impose a penalty or 
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in 
the Work unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution 
proceeding. 

§ 11.10.4 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Additional Services, and services performed on 
the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times. 

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows: 

All civil engineering and site related work shall be performed by Valor Engineering, Inc. Architect shall design 
plumbing and electrical schematics within the building and up to ten feet (10') outside the building. Architect and 
Valor shall coordinate their efforts so that all systems will function to the satisfaction of Owner. Coordination with 
Valor Engineering, Inc. is included in Architect's fee, and shall not be considered an Additional Service. 

Architect's fee as set forth above shall also include at least: 
One programming meeting 
One presentation of SD/DD to County 
Monthly site visits to inspect the progress of the work and compliance with the design as prepared by Architect 
Final Inspection of the project at completion of construction 

AlA Document 8101 TM- 2007 ~onnerly B151'M -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties , and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is 
not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

18 

080514 BCC Meeting

62



I nit. 

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both Owner and Architect. 

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents listed below: 
.1 AlA Document Bl 01 ™- 2007, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect 
.2 AlA Document E201™- 2007, Digital Data Protocol Exhibit, if completed, or the fo llowing: 

.3 Other documents: 
(List other documents, if any, including Exhibit A, Initial Information, and additional scopes of 
service, if any, forming part of the Agreement.) 

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

OWNER ARCHITECT 

(Signature) (Signature) 
Deron Geouque, County Manager Michael H. Nicklas, FAIA, President 
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title) 

AlA Document B10FM- 2007 ~onnerly B16FM -1997). Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights 
reserved. WARNING : This AlA Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. Unauthorized reproduction or distribution 19 
of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible 
under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/201 5, and is 
not for resale. 

1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

63



Additions and Deletions Report for 
® TM 

AlA Document 8101 - 2007 

This Additions and Deletions Report, as defined on page 1 of the associated document, reproduces below all text the author has 

added to the standard form AlA document in order to complete it, as well as any text the author may have added to or deleted from 

the original AlA text. Added text is shown underlined. Deleted text is indicated with a horizontal line through the original AlA text . 

Note: This Additions and Deletions Report is provided for information purposes only and is not incorporated into or constitute any 

part of the associated AlA document. This Additions and Deletions Report and its associated document were generated 

simultaneous ly by AlA software at15:33:34 on 07/22/2014. 

PAGE 1 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of :!!!J.y_in the year 2014 

Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
814 West King St. 
Boone, NC 28607 
Telephone Number: 828-265-8000 
Fax Number: 828-264-3230 

Innovative Design, Inc. 
850 West Morgan Street 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
Telephone Number: 919-832-6303 
Fax Number: 919-832-3339 

1403 -Watauga County Medic Base 3 
Intersection ofUS Highway 321 and Willowdale Church Rd.; Vilas, NC 

PAGE2 

January 5, 2015 

September 8, 201 5 

PAGE3 

$1,000,000 each; $2,000,000 general aggregated 

$1,000,000 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document B10FM- 2007 (fonnerly B15FM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution ofthis AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
i'Jo.21_60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale. 

-1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

1 

080514 BCC Meeting

64



$500,000 

$1,000,000 

PAGE4 

In addition to the services enumerated in the Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, 
Innovative Design shall provide the following as part of our Basic Services: 
Programming: ID shall conduct one meeting with key players in Watauga plus follow-up as 

necessary. 

Multiple Designs: 
Civil Engineering 

Interior Design 

Value Engineering 

Cost Estimate 
As-Builts 

Telecommunications 

Commissioning 

PAGES 

ID will provide written documents detailing goals and objectives that result from 
the input received. 
ID shall provide two schematic floor plan options. 
Only coordination with Valor that handles all design 1 0' outside building. 
There is no other civil design in ID's contract. 
ID shall list finishes (including colors of walls, ceilings, and floor finishes). 
ill's electrical engineer shall specify light fixtures. 
ID shall not provide services relative to furniture or furnishing selections. 
ID shall provide energy simulations and LCC analysis of various viable energy 
alternatives (including daylighting options and mechanical systems). 
ID shall provide a cost estimate. 
ID shall obtain the final marked up changes from the GC and shall develop a 
CAD document for Record Drawings. 
Elm Engineering has included running CAT6 wiring from outlets to a 
centralized communications patch panel. Elm has not included any work 
associated with developing an emergency call system 
Commissioning efforts would be limited to typical services provided during 
substantial and final inspections. 

§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner's written approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner's 
authorization of any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect 
shall prepare Construction Documents for the Owner' s approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist of Drawings 
and Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels of materials and systems and other requirements for the 
construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that in order to construct the Work the Contractor 
will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and other similar submittals, 
which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4. 

PAGE7 

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of and reasonably inferable 
from the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall eAdeavor to see1:1re faithful J3erformaAee 13y both Owfler aAd CoAtraetor, shall Rot 
show 13artiality to either, aAd shall Rot 13e lial3le for res1:1lts of iAterJ3retatioAs or deeisioAs reAdered iA good faith . The 
Arelliteet' s deeisioAs OA matters relatiAg to aesthetie effeet shalll3e fiAal ifeoRsisteAt with tile iAteAt OllJ3ressed iA tile 
CoAtraet Doei:IFAeAts.act in the best interests of the Owner and render decisions in good faith. 

§ 3.6.2.5 UAless tile OWfler aAd CoAtraetor desigAate aAotller J3ersoA to serve as aA l:Aitial DeeisioA Maker, as that 
teFFA is defiAed iA AlA Doe1:1meAt i\201 2007, the Arehiteet shall reAder iAitial deoisioAs OA Claims 13eh'l'eeA tile 
O•Nf!er aAd CoAtraetor as J3Fo;·ided iA the CoAtraet Doe1:1meAts. " 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document 8101 rM- 2007 (fonnerly 8151 rM - 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may resu lt in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
~0 . 21.60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale . 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

2 

080514 BCC Meeting

65



PAGES 

§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may authorize minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract 
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to 
the provisions of Section 4.3, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the 
Owner's written approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

PAGE9 

(Designate the Additional Services the Architect shall provide in the second column of the table below. In the third 
column indicate whether the service description is located in Section 4.2 or in an attached exhibit. /fin an exhibit, 
identify the exhibit.) 

Note 2: See Section 3.1.6 for services provided within Basic Services. 

I § 4.1 .1 Programming (B202TM_2Q09) See Note #2 

I § 4.1.7 Civil engineering See Owner Note 1 

Owner Note I: Any work required regarding Civil Engineering including finish grades and temporary and 
permanent seeding shall be the responsibility of Valor Engineering, PLLC through a separate Contract with the 
Owner. 

PAGE10 

§ 4.3 Additional Services may be provided after execution of this Agreement, without invalidating the Agreement. 
Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in accordance with 
this Section 4.3 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an appropriate adjustment in 
the Architect' s schedule. Except as noted in 4.3.2, Additional Services shall only be rendered by the Architect 
pursuant to a written Change Order to provide such additional services. Any services provided without first 
obtaining a written Change Order shall not entitle the Architect to any additional compensation. 

§ 4.3.2 Reserved. 
To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Arehiteet shall preYicle the fellewing Aclclitienal Seryiees, netif)· the 
Owner Vl'ith reasenable preFRptness, ancl 6llplain the faets ancl eiretiFRstaHees giving rise te the neecl. Ifthe Ovlfler 
stlbseqtlently cleterFRines that all er parts efthese serviees are net reqt1irecl, the Ovlfler shall give preFR)3t written 
netiee te the A:ehiteet, ancl the Ovlfler shall have ne further ebligatien te eeFRJ3ensate the A:ehiteet fer these 
serviees: phase, the Architect may receive Additional Services associated with time required to address problems 
identified in the field, that necessitate timely action. In this case, the Architect will, with reasonable promptness, 
notify the Owner 

.1 R-eviewing a Centraeter's stlbFRittal etlt ef seqt1enee H-erR the sllbFRittal sehedt~le agreed te by the 
A:ehiteet; 

.2 R-espencling te the Centraeter's reqt~ests fer inferFRatien that are net prepared in aeeerdanee with the 
Centraet DeetiFRents er where st1eh inferFRatien is available te the Centraeter H-erR a eareful stt1cly 
ancl eeFRparisen efthe Centraet DeetiFRents, field eenclitiens, ether Ovlfler pre•,·icled inferFRatien, 
Centraeter prepared eeerclinatien clra· .... ings, er prier Pr(!jeet eerrespenclenee er cleetiFRentatien; 

.3 Preparing Change Orders oocl Censtmetien Change Direetives that reqt~ire e•,caltlatien efCentraeter's 
prepesals ancl st!pperting data, er the preparatien er re'>·isien ef lnstrtiFRents ef Serviee; 

.4 Evalt1ating an eJltensive Atlfflber efClaiFRs as the lAitial DeeisieR Mal<er; 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document 8101 rM- 2007 (formerly 8151 rM - 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution ofthis AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
~0.21_60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale . 

-1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com ) 

3 

080514 BCC Meeting

66



PAGE 11 

.§ E•,•alHatiHg Sl:lbstitHtieHs prepesee 13y the Ov.'Her er CeHtraeter eAe makiHg SHbSeEjl:leAt reYisieHs te 
lHstrHmeHts efSerYiee resHltiHg therefrom; er 

.6 Te the eJcteHt the Arehiteet's Basie SerYiees are affeetee, pr8'ridiHg CeHstrHetieA Phase SerYiees eO 
days after (1) the date ef St:~ l3staHtial CempletieH efthe Werk er (2) the aHtieipatee date ef St:~l3staHtial 
CempletieH ieeHtifiee iH IHitialiHformatieH, whiehe>t'er is earlier . 

. 1 Three ( L) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittal of 
the Contractor 

.2 Seven (I__) visits to the site by the Architect over the duration of the Project during construction 

.3 One ( L_) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work 
is substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 

.4 One ( L_) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion 

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner's behalf with respect to the Project. 
The Owner shall render decisions aHd appreYe !!12Q!l_the Architect's submittals in writing in a timely manner in 
order to avoid unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect's services. 

PAGE12 

§ 5.13 The Owner shall provide the services of a Civil Engineer currently identified as Valor Engineering, PLLC. 

PAGE 13 

§ 8.1.2 Te the e>cteHt damages are eeveree 13y property iHsHFaHee, the Ovmer eAe Arehiteet waive all rights egaiHst 
eeeh ether aAd agaiHst the eeHtraeters, eeHsHltaHts, ageHts aHd emple)·ees efthe ether fer damages, e>ceept s1:1eh 
rights as they may ha•;e te the preeeeds efsHeh iHsHFaHee as set ferth iH AlA DeeHmeHt A20 1 2007, GeAeral 
CeHditieHs efthe CeHtraet fer CeHstrHetieH. The OWHer er the A:-ehiteet, as apprepriate, shall reEjHire efthe 
eeHtraeters, eeHsl:lltaHts, ageAts aAd employees efaHy efthem similar waivers iH ffiver efthe ether parties 
eHHmerated hereiH. 

PAGE14 

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered 13y the ArHerieaH 
i\rl3itratioH AsseeiatieH iH aeeerdaHee with its CeHStrHetieH IHdl:lstry MediatieH PreeedHres iH effeet eH the date ef 
the AgreemeHt. in accordance with the rules for mediated settlement conferences for Superior Court matters within 
the State ofNorth Carolina. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to the 
Agreement, and filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently 
with the filing of a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, 
mediation shall proceed in advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending 
mediation for a period of 60 days from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the 
parties or court order. If an arbitration proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless 
proceed to the selection of the arbitrator(s) and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the~ 
County where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in 
mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document 81 01fM - 2007 (formerly B161fM - 1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING : This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
~o.21.60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

4 

080514 BCC Meeting

67



[ M_] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

PAGE16 

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives information specifically designated by the other party as "confidential" or 
"business proprietary," the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it 
to any other person except to (I) its employees, (2) those who need to know the content of such information in order 
to perform services or construction solely and exclusively for the Project, or (3) its consultants and contractors 
whose contracts include similar restrictions on the use of confidential information. Notwithstanding the provisions 
of this section, the parties acknowledge that Owner is a political subdivision of the State ofNorth Carolina, and is 
subject to the public records laws as set forth in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 132-1 et seq. As such, any information subject to 
the laws governing the disclosure of documents in the possession of a governmental body shall prevail over the 
terms of this section. In the event a request is made for documents marked 'Confidential' by the Architect, the 
Owner shall provide twenty days notice to Architect of the request and allow Architect an opportunity to object to 
the production of such document. In the event the document is not produced at Architect's request and litigation 
ensures for production of that document, Architect agrees to indemnify and hold harmless Owner from any and all 
costs and expenses, including reasonable attorney fees, which may be incurred related to the 'Confidential' 
document. 

A fixed fee of$45,000.00 (forty-five thousand dollars), including engineering services (except Civil Engineering). 

Principals: $135/hour 
Architects/Engineers: $100/hour 
Energy Analysts: $100/hour 
CADD: $ 90/hour 

PAGE17 

Principals: $135/hour 
Architects/Engineers: $100/hour 
Energy Analysts: $100/hour 
CADD: $ 90/hour 

§ 11.4 Compensation for Additional Services of the Architect's consultants when not included in Section 11.2 or 
11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus zero percent ( .Q_%), or as otherwise stated below: 

Schematic Design Phase Twenty percent 20 %) 
Design Development Phase Ten percent 1Q %) 
Construction Documents Thirty-five percent 35 %) 
Phase 
Bidding or Negotiation Phase Five percent ~ %) 
Construction Phase Thirty percent 30 %) 

Principals: $135/hour 
Architects/Engineers: $100/hour 
Energy Analysts: $100/hour 
CADD: $ 90/hour 

PAGE18 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document 8101 rM- 2007 (fonnerly 8151 rM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. Al l rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
~0 . 21.60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale. 

. 1900766828) 

You created th is PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com ) 

5 

080514 BCC Meeting

68



§ 11.8.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect's consultants plus zero percent ( Q_%) of the expenses incurred. 

§ 11.10.1 An initial payment of zero ($ ~shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the 
minimum payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner's account in the final invoice. 

§ 11.10.2 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services 
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid forty ( 
1Q__) days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal 
rate prevailing from time to time at the principal place of business of the Architect. 

L% perannum 

All civil engineering and site related work shall be performed by Valor Engineering, Inc. Architect shall design 
plumbing and electrical schematics within the building and up to ten feet (10') outside the building. Architect and 
Valor shall coordinate their efforts so that all systems will function to the satisfaction of Owner. Coordination with 
Valor Engineering, Inc. is included in Architect's fee, and shall not be considered an Additional Service. 

Architect's fee as set forth above shall also include at least: 
One programming meeting 
One presentation of SD/DD to County 
Monthly site visits to inspect the progress of the work and compliance with the design as prepared by Architect 
Final Inspection of the project at completion of construction 

PAGE19 

Deron Geougue, County Manager Michael H. Nicklas, FAIA, President 

Additions and Deletions Report for AlA Document B101'M- 2007 (formerly B15FM -1997). Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997 and 2007 by The 
American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA® Document is protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties. 
Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA® Document, or any portion of it, may result in severe civil and crim inal penalties, and will be 
prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order 
~0 . 21.60440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale. 

' 1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

6 

080514 BCC Meeting

69



Certification of Document's Authenticity 
AJA® Document 0401™- 2003 

I, Michael Nicklas, FAIA, hereby certifY, to the best of my knowledge, information and belief, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with its associated Additions and Deletions Report and this certification at 
15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No. 2160440015 I from AlA Contract Documents software and that in 
preparing the attached final document I made no changes to the original text of AlA® Document B101TM - 2007, 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect, as published by the AlA in its software, other than 
those additions and deletions shown in the associated Additions and Deletions Report. 

(Signed) 

(!'it/e) 

(Dated) 

AlA Document D401 TM- 2003. Copyright© 1992 and 2003 by The American Institute of Architects. All rights reserved. WARNING: This AlA" Document is 
protected by U.S. Copyright Law and International Treaties . Unauthorized reproduction or distribution of this AlA" Document, or any portion of it, 1 
may result in severe civil and criminal penalties, and will be prosecuted to the maximum extent possible under the law. This document was produced by 
AlA software at 15:33:34 on 07/22/2014 under Order No.2160440015_1 which expires on 05/04/2015, and is not for resale. 
User Notes: (1900766828) 

You created this PDF from an application that is not licensed to print to novaPDF printer (http://www.novapdf.com) 

080514 BCC Meeting

70



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

COMMUNICATIONS & EMERGENCY SERVICES 
A. Out-of-State Travel Request 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the November 19, 2013, meeting the Board approved the submission of a grant application to 
the North Carolina Emergency Management for a hazardous materials exercise in the amount of 
$10,000.  The exercise scenario entails an accident in which hazardous materials would be 
released into the Watauga River affecting the counties of Watauga, Avery, Johnson and Carter 
with the latter two being located in Tennessee. 
 
As part of the grant, out-of-state travel to Tennessee is required to complete the exercise.  Board 
approval is requested to authorize out-of-state travel for the staff members of the Emergency 
Services Department to attend the tabletop exercise. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

71



WATAUGA COUNTY      _______ 

Department of Communications & Emergency Services 
184 Hodges Gap Road Suite D ♦ Boone, North Carolina 28607   Phone (828) 264-3761 
                      FAX   (828) 265-7617 
   Jeff Virginia-Director                     
                                                                                     Email: Jeff.Virginia@watgov.org 
 
 

 
July 22, 2014 
 
From:  Jeff Virginia 
To:  Watauga County Board of Commissioners 
Reference: Out of state travel 
Cc:  Deron Geouque 
 
Attached are 4 travel authorization requests for the Emergency Management staff that are involved 
in the Hazardous Materials Exercise that involves Watauga, Avery and Johnson Counties. This 
travel is for the tabletop exercise that will take place in Tennessee at the Lakeshore Marina on 
August 9, 2014. 
 
I respectfully request the approval of this request for this important training. 
 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

72



080514 BCC Meeting

73



080514 BCC Meeting

74



080514 BCC Meeting

75



080514 BCC Meeting

76



AGENDA ITEM 8: 

COMMUNICATIONS & EMERGENCY SERVICES 
B. Proposed HMGP Grant Application 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Steve Sudderth, Fire Marshal, will present an application to the Hazardous Mitigation Grant 
Program (HMGP) to apply for funding for the demolition and removal of a home located at 131 
Morningside Drive in Boone.  Several years ago numerous homes located in the area were 
demolished and removed along Morningside Drive (see attached map) as part of a HMGP 
project.  At that time, the subject property owner was not interested in participating in the 
project.  However, continued flood related issues after the sale of the home has prompted the 
new owners to request participation in the HMGP.  Based on conversations with Mr. Sudderth, 
the Town of Boone is not interested in participating in the current application leaving the County 
the only option for assistance and relief for the home owners.   
 
The total cost of the project is $215,874 with a required match of $53,968.50, which is to be paid 
by the State.  The only cost to the County would be staff time and maintenance (mowing/weed 
eating) of the property once the project is completed.  Staff would continue to work with the 
Town for possible incorporation into the existing lots already mitigated.  A copy of a map 
including the location of the subject property is included. 
 
Should the Board wish to proceed with the application, approval and adoption of the enclosed 
resolution would be required designating the County Manager as the Primary Agent and the Fire 
Marshal as the Secondary Agent. 
 
Staff seeks direction from the Board.   
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

77



080514 BCC Meeting

78



North Carolina Division of Emergency Management 

Hazard Mitigation Branch: HMGP Application NOTE: 

Application must be submitted induplicate. 
I. PROJECT OVERVIEW 

1. Applicant Legal Name: 

Organizational Unit: 

2. Applicant Type: 
Local 
Government 

3. Is this a new or revised application? 

If revised, check appropriate box: 

4. Project Title: 

5. Proposed Project Total 
Cost: 

Federal Share (75%): 

Non-Federal 
(25%): 

6. Certifications: 

Match 

State Government 

'">x ·~~ New 
,.-_·r:v:""·• c.-...-

'I;~:~ ,~: Funding Change 

Acquisition 

Private Non-Profit (Attach 
copy of50lc3) 

Revised 

Timeline Extension 

The undersigned assures fulfillment of all requirements of the Hazard Mitigation Grant Program as contained in the 
program guidelines and that all information contained herein is true and correct to the best of my knowledge. The 
governing body of the applicant has duly authorized the document, and hereby applies for the assistance documented in 
this application. Also, the applicant understands that the project may proceed ONLY AFTER FEMA APPROVAL is 
gained. 

Typed Name of Authori::ed Representative/Applicant Agent Telephone Number 

Date Signed 

080514 BCC Meeting

79



II. APPLICANT INFORMATION 

The answer to both 1 and 2 below must be "yes" to be considered eligible. 

1. Does your community have a current FEMA approved multi-hazard mitigation plan? X Yes ' No --
Location of proposed project in mitigation plan strategies Page 

---;-----'----': 

Title of Plan: North Carolina Enhanced State Hazard 
Mitigation Plan 

Adoption Date: May 21,2013 

Is the project type covered in the State 322 Plan?_ Y _ Page 756·75i 

X Yes No -2. Is the community a member of good standing with the National Flood Insurance Program? 

3. CID Number: 

4. Tax ID Number 

5. U.S. Congressional 
District: 

6. State Senatorial District: ·. 45th' 
.·,' ;· .. · 

7. State Legislative District: ,·::~2g((~~J~: : . Representative Name: :~fUonafi1a~ J<)fd~~·~:>, 
~--'-~~~~~-----~~~~~ 

8. Primary Point of Contact: 

The Primary Point of Contact is the person responsible for coordinating the implementation of this proposal, if approval 
in granted. 

'1 __ .- -: 

., Ms. · ·X ' Mr. 
~ _:\:_· _· '! ,!' ·;· --~ 

Street 
Address: 

City: " 

9. Alternate Point of Contact: 

Mrs. 
Name: 

The Alternate Point of Contact is the person that can address questions or concerns in the Primary Point of Contact's 
absence. 

Ms. 

Title: 

Street 
Address: 

, Mr. , X • Mrs. 
.~,. ' Name: 

City: ~oone · :;~,. .. -·--: c: 

~828/264-
Telephone: 4235 · 

---=-=----

First 
Last Name: 

Mobile: 
E-mail · · 

Address: steve.sudderth@watg~li~org 

2 

080514 BCC Meeting

80



I 0. Application Prepared by: 

Ms. Mr. X 
Mrs. 
Name: 

Title: Fire Ma.rs~aii/EM Coordination 

Street 
Address : 

City: Boone 

First Steve Last Name: •Sudderth 

State: NC Zip Code: 28601 
----------~----- ---------

Telephone: Mobile: steve.sudderth@watgov .org 
828/264~. 

'4235 
E-mail 

Address: 
~------~~· ~· ~· ----~--

11. Authorized Applicant Agent: 

The Authorized Applicant Agent MUST be the chief executive officer, mayor, etc. This person must be able to sign 
contracts, authorize funding allocations or payments, etc . 

Mrs. First 
Ms . . I Mr 

. I . X Name: Deron Last Name: 
,f· '· 

Geouque .. ·· 

Title: c:a, 1nty t-fan~ger 
Street 
Address: .·8i4 . West King.~ st'reet 
City: 

------~~~~-----------

Telephone: 828-26s~- :· · 
8000 

Fax: SZ8~264;:_ · ·· · Mobile: 
3230 ~~~~ 

Zip Code: -L.U.I~f---'.-_:.._.__ 

E-mail Address: De~~!l .. ~G~otlq~e@ . 
watgov.org 

III. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

1. History of Hazards - The assessment of the frequency and severity of an event for hazards being mitigated 
should be discussed for the community affected by this project. T ie past damage history events to the 
proposed mitigation project. 

This project application for acquisition/demolition of 1 structure located in Watauga County will eliminate the impact of 
hurricanes, tornadoes and flooding . Benefits have been calculated based on hazards impacting the structure. 

Hurricane and Tropical Storm- According to the National Hurricane Center's historical storm track records, 15 hurricane 
or tropical storm tracks have passed within 75 miles of the High Country Region since 1850. This includes: one Category 2 
hurricane, one Category 1 hurricane, and thirteen tropical storms. Hurricane Hugo, which impacted the region in 1989, 
remained a Category 2 storm until just before entering the High Country Region in Watauga County as a tropical storm. The 
Category One storm track passed several miles east ofthe region in 1893. Of the recorded storm events, three tropical storms 
traversed directly through the High Country Region. The National Climatic Data Center did not report any event associated 
with a hurricane or tropical storm in the High Country Region between 1950 and 2011. However, federal records indicate 
that disaster declarations were made in 1989 (Hurricane Hugo), 2004 (Tropical Storm Frances), and 2004 (Hurricane Ivan) . 
Hurricane and tropical storm events can cause substantial damage in the area due to high winds and flooding. Flooding is 
generally the greatest hazard of concern with hurricane and tropical storm events in the High Country Region. Most events do 
not carry winds that are above that of the winter storms received by the High Country counties. 

Flood- Information from the National Climatic Data Center was used to ascertain historical flood events. The National 
Climatic Data Center reported a total of 163 events throughout the High Country Region since 1993 . Flash Floods and 
Urban/Small Stream Flooding account for the majority of these events. These events accounted for $17.7 million (2012 
dollars) in property damage due to flood events throughout the region. There were no reported injmies or deaths. 

According to FEMA flood insurance policy records as of February 2012, there have been 216 flood losses reported in the 
High Country Region through the National Flood Insmance Program (NFIP) since 1970, totaling over $2.8 million in claims 
payments. It should be emphasized that these numbers include only those losses to structures that were insured through the 

3 

080514 BCC Meeting

81



NFIP policies, and for losses in which claims were sought and received. It is likely that many additional instances of flood 
loss in the High Country Region were either uninsured, denied claims payment, or not reported. 

2. Project Description I Protection Provided/Scope of Work Narrative 

Describe, in detail, the proposed project. Explain how the proposed project will solve the problem(s) and provide the 
level(s) of protection described in Section D. Include a description of the desired outcome and methodology of the 
mitigation activity in terms of mitigation objectives to be achieved. 

Do not generalize, but address the specific benefits (e.g., who, what, how, where and when). Be explicit and concise; 
assume that the reader has no knowledge of your situation or your community. 

The scope of work description must map to the line items in the budget. Reference any unique property-specific 
issues. For acquisition, reference the FMV appraisal appeal process per NCEM HM Branch SOPs. Also reference 
the line items included in NCEM's Standard Values for Acquisitions. 

Also, please provide a narrative regarding the property selection criteria (a requirement of the Environmental Justice 
Executive Order) 

Scope of Work Summary 

This HMGP application is for acquisition and demolition of I residential structure located within the boundaries of the 
special flood hazard area. [See attached Property Site Inventory (PSI) sheet which lists all properties along with 
applicable costs and relevant data]. The subject structure was damaged by a common hazard condition, heavy rainfall. 
The structure is situated along a narrow corridor immediately inland from the Sound. 

Acquisition and demolition of this residential structure removes it from the 100 year floodplain. Removal of this 
residence from the floodplain eliminates future losses by designating future land use as "open space in perpetuity," and a 
deed restriction will be applied as such by Watauga County. Acquisition and demolition is by far the most effective 
solution for this important project. 

4 

080514 BCC Meeting

82



Scope of Work Methodology- Timeline and Line Item Budget 

In order to execute this activity, NCEM will: 

A. Execute a Grant Agreement Between NCEM and Watauga County. The grant agreement is the official contract 
between the State ofNorth Carolina and the County. It is an official attestation of the Scope of Work as porh·ayed in 
this application. 

B. Project Kick-off and Procurement - Develop Bid Specifications and Bid Package for Services; Receive and 
Review Bids for Services . Watauga County will bid out for services to procure: a) North Carolina-certified 
appraisers to determine pre-disaster Fair Market Value for structures in the Scope of Work; b) a licensed surveyor to 
conduct a "metes and bounds" survey of each property; c) research for the title opinion for each property; d) 
potentially a contractor to manage the grant-specific paperwork for this project. 

C. Conduct Title Work, Survey, and Appraisal Process - The County's selected contractors will: a) conduct a 
detailed title search for each property to ensure that the property owner has "clear tit le" and that no issues arise; b) 
conduct a "metes and bounds" survey of each property (not an Elevation Certificate) to determine the legal property 
lines for each parcel as a basis for resolving any potential encroachment issues; c) conduct an appraisal process to 
determine pre-disaster Fair Market Value for each property according to NCEM Standard Operating Procedures. 
Pre-disaster Fair Market Value (FMV) will be offered as an option to U.S. Citizens, as captured by the Homeowner 
Intake Application and UHMA Guidance. The HGMP grant pays for fLrst appraisal to determine pre-disaster FMV. 
If a property owner wishes to appeal he/she can do so and procure a second appraisal at his/her expense. If the 
average of the two appraisals is within 15% of each other, the higher value is determined to be the acceptable FMV. 
If the two appraisals are more than 15% of each other, the HMGP grant will pay for a third appraisal and the average 
of the three will be determined as fmal FMV. Duplication of benefits will be deducted from the FMV during closing. 
All appraisal summaries will be documented as FEMA closeout deliverables. For additional details on title work, 
surveys and the appraisal process, see NCEM Mitigation Standard Operating Procedures for Acquisition (Chapter 6) 
http :1 /www. nccrimecontrol.org/d i v/em/hazardm itigat ion/StandardOperatingProcedures. pdf. 

D. Property Acquis ition/Closing - Watauga County will schedule the closing with the property owners in the Scope 
of Work who are fmal voluntary participants. A fmal HUD-1 will be executed between the property owner and the 
County per NCEM Acquisition SOP's. 
http://www.nccrimecontrol .org/div/em/hazardmitigation/StandardOperatingProcedures.pdf 

E. Asbestos Inspection - Watauga County will procure and conduct asbestos inspections for all structures in the 
Scope of Work which have been acquired and are on target to be demolished. 

F. Demolition (including procurement of demolition contracts, and asbestos abatement). Watauga County will bid 
out for demolition contractual and asbestos abatement services to ensure that the fmal parcels meet the UHMA 
model deed restriction, UHMA Guidance, and 44 CFR defmitions for "open space in perpetuity." Watauga County 
and NCEM will also closely explore the role of ICC in the demolition process, and coordinate with NFIP officials on 
ICC claim filing for demolition (as appropriate) to avoid any potential duplication of benefits. Watauga County will 
follow NCEM Standard Operating Procedures for Demolition per NCEM Hazard Mitigation SOP's (Chapter 7) . 
http://www.nccrimecontrol.org/div/em/hazardmitigation!StandardOperatingProcedures.pdf. 

G. Application of Deed Restriction to Acquired Parcel. Watauga Cotmty will apply a deed restriction to all acquired 
properties in the Scope of Work. The restrictive language will follow the UHMA Model Deed Restriction Guidance 
to be provided to the County by NCEM during the project implementation ("kick-off') meeting. The Deed 
Restriction will hold the acquired parcel as "open space in perpetuity," and will be recorded in the Watauga County 
Register of Deeds. A copy of this deliverable will be provided at closeout. 

H. Closeout Process. Watauga will notifY NCEM once the Scope of Work for the project is complete. NCEM will then 
conduct a detailed site inspection of each parcel to verifY UHMA compliance. NCEM will also inspect local files 
related to the project and also obtain copies of FEMA-required closeout deliverables referred to in the UHMA 
Guidance and FEMA award Letter. NCEM will not pay the fmal reimbursement request ("Cost Report") from the 
County until the fmal site inspection is conducted and any corrective actions (if any) are addressed. A closeout 

5 

080514 BCC Meeting

83



request letter, FEMA closeout certification statement, and required deliverables will be submitted no later than the 
end of the 90 day administrative closeout (liquidation) period following the last day of the period of performance. 
Please note that any Period of Performance extension requests will be submitted to FEMA no later than 90 days 
prior to the end of the POP end date in the FEMA A ward Letter. Also, any potential re-uses of the parcel consistent 
with the UHMA Model Deed Restriction will be submitted by Watauga County to the State Hazard Mitigation 
Officer for review and potential submission to FEMA as a request separate from the scope of this grant. 

Notes on the Line Item Budget 

A. Expenses noted in the attached line item budget correlate to activities undertaken in the Scope of Work. 

B. Project Management is expenses primarily related to Watauga County's time to administer grant-related paperwork 
and activities. The sum total of project management is not to exceed 5% of the total soft cost and construction 
budget, and is represented as $5,000/property based on NCEM standard values. 

C. NCEM standard values are maintained as templates in the NCEM Hazard Mitigation Branch online library. Standard 
Values for acquisition and demolition projects have been determined based on statewide market conditions 
calibrated for each project cost type (i.e. frrst appraisal, title work, third appraisal, survey, demolition costs/square 
foot, closing/legal costs, deed preparation, and asbestos inspection and abatement) . On an annual basis, these costs 
are recalibrated based on actual costs of these line items received statewide. The purpose of NCEM standard values 
is to determine a reasonable project costs for grant development purposes. **Actual expenses are reimbursed on the 
"back end" of the project implementation process via the submission of Cost Reports by Watauga County to NCEM. 
Cost Reports are analyzed for prograiTIIllatic eligibility and cost by NCEM project managers per NCEM Hazard 
Mitigation Financial Management SOPs - Draw Downs page 2-20. 

http://www.nccrimecontrol.org/div/em/hazardm itigation/StandardOperatingProcedures.pdf. Actual expenses will often 
reflect the post-award procurement outcomes and bid process in Step 2 of the Timeline, above. 

D. Fair Market Value - Fair Market Value has been determined by the Watauga County tax department to be a tax 
multiplier of 1.39 over the tax value represented on the tax cards. Through its Standard Values, NCEM assigns a tax 
multiplier to tax value to come to a conservative but reasonable best estimate of what FMV is likely to be 
determined as per the appraisal process. Please note that a coiTIIllercial property estimate tool was used and the tax 
value of 1.39 very closely correlated to the values on this site, and therefore a multiplier of 1.39 has been confliffied 
as best available data. 

3. Decision-Making Process 

Describe the process you used to decide that this project is the best solution to the problem. Explain why this proj ect is 
the best alternative. This should coincide with information supplied in VI. Alternative Actions. Address questions such 
as: 

• Are you focusing on the area in your coiTIIllunity that has the greatest potential for losses? 

• Have you considered the risks to critical facilities and structures and benefits to be obtained by mitigating this 
vulnerability? 

• Have you considered those areas or projects that present the greatest opportunities given the current situation an 
interest in your community? 

• Are you addressing a symptom or the source of the problem? Addressing the source of the problem is a long-term 
solution which provides the most mitigation benefits. 

If impacts to the environmental/historic preservation, natural, cultural or historic resources have been identified, explain 
how your alternatives and proposed project address, minimize, or avoid these impacts. 
Acquisition provides a permanent solution for the structure flooding in the flood prone areas of Watauga County. It 
eliminates the risk of any further damage to the structures. 

In addition to reducing the public cost of recovery and reconstruction, acquisition is a tool for accomplishing other 
coiTIIllunity goals. The use of acquisition as a mitigation tool can help to increase floodplain storage capacity, preserve 
wetlands, maritime forests, estuaries and other natural habitats, and provide open space, beach access, and parks and 
recreation areas. 

6 

080514 BCC Meeting

84



The second alternative is to relocate the chosen structures outside the floodplain. This alternative would be impeded by 
the lack of buildable housing sites in Watauga County . Additionally, there are unknowns relating to type of ground, code 
requirements by the county as well as the bidding process that will need to be done in order to accomplish the alternative 
proj ect. These unknowns could add considerable costs to the alternative project budget. 

4. Hazards to be Mitigated I Level of Protection 

a. Select the primary hazard the proposed project will mitigate: 

Drought x Flood Mud/Landslide Snow 

Earthquake Freezing Severe Ice Storm X Tornado 

Fire Land Subsidence X Severe Storm(s) X Windstorms 

Other 
(list) 

b. Select all other hazards the proposed project will mitigate: 

Biological X 
-

Earthquake Land Subsidence Special Events 

Chemical Fire Mud/Landslide Terrorist 

Civil Unrest Fishing Losses Nuclear Tornado 
-~ 

Crop Losses ·' X Flood · X Severe Ice Storm Toxic Substances 

Dam/Levee Break Freezing X Severe Storm(s) Windstorms 

Drought Human Caused X -- Snow Other (list below) 

5. Site 

A. Physical Location/Community Information 

Describe the area and population affected/protected by this proj ect, including location. Provide demographic and 
geographic information. 

Watauga County is a county located in the U.S. state of North Carolina. 

Located in the northwestern portion of North Carolina, Watauga County occupies 
312.51 square miles. 

Watauga County has mountainous terrain with several peaks reaching 5,000 feet in 
elevation . 

Climatically, Watauga County experiences all four seasons. Summer typically is warm 
with thunderstorms, fall weather is cool and wet, winter is cold with an array of frozen 
precipitation, and spring is temperate. All seasons are highlighted with precipitation . 

According to the U.S. Census Bureau, Watauga County has a projected population of 
45 ,196 for 2008. 

Although Watauga County is primarily a rural county there are four incorporated 
municipalities within the county. 

7 

080514 BCC Meeting

85



There are approximately 136.4 persons per square mile. 

B. Population Affected 

Watauga County, 
North Carolina 

{ ~{~):,~{t[,;:~~~i;:;'~i)> 
·-' · :., ., 

Provide the percent of the population benefiting from this mitigation activity. Explain your response . 

I 00% - By reducing the public cost of recovery for those affected by an incident. 

8 

080514 BCC Meeting

86



6. Maps 

Please attach the following maps with the project site and structures marked on the map. Use SAME ID number as in 
the property worksheet. 

X Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM). If the FIRM for your area is not published, please attach a copy of the Flood 
Hazard Boundary Map (FHBM). 

X 

X 

X 

USGS 1:24,000 topo map 

Parcel Map (Tax Map, Property Identification Map, etc.) 

Overview photographs. The photographs should be representative of the project area, including any relevant 
streams, creeks, rivers, etc., and drainage areas which affect the project site of will be affected by the project. 

Additional Comments 

7. Enter any additional comments related to the proposed project's description, if desired. 

IV. SCOPE OF WORK I BUDGET 
In this section, provide the details of all costs of the project. For estimates, reasonable projections are essential. 

1. Acquisition 

a. Estimated Pre-Event Fair Market Value 

b. Estimated Cost for Demolition 

c. Estimated Appraisal Cost (1st & 3 rct) 

d. Estimated Asbestos Inspection & Removal 

e. Wells, Septic, UST, Grading & Seeding 

f. URA 

g. Pre-Mitigation Survey 

h. Project Management & Intake Interview 

I. Estimated LegaVClosing Cost inc! title 

j. Level I ESA 

I. Program Income 

m. . 0 Duplication of Benefits n. Totalofl&m $ 0 
~~----~------

o. Subtract n. from k. to determine Total Cost to Acquire Property 

2. Total Project Cost (A+B) 

Proposed Project Total Cost: 

75% Federal Share: 

$ '' 

$ 
25% Non-Federal Match: . ~ 
NOTE: Round figures to the nearest dollar. 

'215,87 4.00'. ' 
161,~ps:so 
53,~6s;5Q 

3. Non-Federal Funding Share (25% of Total Cost) 

. $ 0 

List all sources and amounts utilized in the non-federal share including all in-kind services. In-Kind services may 
not exceed the 25% non-federal share. If any portion of the non-Federal share will come from non-applicant sources 
(donated services, private donation, etc.), attach letters of funding commitment for each non-applicant source. 

9 

080514 BCC Meeting

87



Source Name of Source Agency 

State OfNC NCEM 
·. 

.. 
. ; 

' -, .. -, 
·. ., 

Source - State, Local, Pnvate Non-Profi t, Other 
Source Agency = Specific ent ity prov iding match 

., 

} < 

' -'··. 
.. · . 

-. ..· 

'• 

Type Funding Amount 

$ 53,968.50 

' $ 
., .•· ,. $ .:· ,_-

'. $· ·- . ,· . ,. -_ 

$ 
_· · 

Type Funding = Administration, Cash, Consulting Fees, Engineering Fees, Equipment Operation/Rental, Labor, Supplies, Other 

Commitment 
Letter Attached 

See Admin Plan 
. ' 

- ~ .. 

·' .. 

4. Describe how you will manage the costs and schedule, and how you will ensure successful performance. (Must 
Reference Fiscal SOP regarding reimbursement of eligible expenses following award and procurement) 

The North Carolina Department ofPublic Safety (DPS),Division of Emergency Management is the primary grantee 
of the funds processed through Smart link and will follow FEMA 's regional requirements and procedures for 
processing and reporting disbursements of these funds to the subgrantee. The state administers H:N!GP and will 
disburse funds in accordance with state and federal regulations. Cost Reports are analyzed for programmatic 
eligibility and cost by NCEM project managers per NCEM Hazard Mitigation Financial Management SOPs- Draw 
Downs, page 2-20. bttp://www.nccrimecontrol.org/div/em/hazardmiti gation/StandardOperatingProcedures.pdf. 

5. Maintenance 

The following questions are to give assurance on the project's maintenance over its useful life. Please answer each 
question and give a brief explanation. 

a. What is the proposed land use after acquisition? (i.e., Agriculture, Recreation, Vacant Land, Park, Wetlands, etc.) 

Wataqga C;_<iinit)r 'iu1d its.rll.tmiCipalities -will asstime t~sponslbility for maintaining acquired lots as "open 
_ · ,.;~pace'inp~rperuity", retu~ing tile land iQ ;if~ .natm:a:J:habitaL . , - . -

b. Will the proj ect require periodic maintenance? 

J. ·' . 
'' ...: --

c. Who will provide the maintenance? 

, .. 
- \vatahga County. and its municip~llties wili ass\lille responsibility. -

d. What is the cost of maintenance on an annual basis? 

$0 

6. Additional Comments 

Enter any additional comments related to the proposed project's funding, if desired. 

10 

080514 BCC Meeting

88



V. TIME LINE IT ASKS 

1. Insert the proposed work schedule as tasks to accomplish the overall goal of the proposed activity, i. e., appraisals, 
title search, closing, etc., and provide a description of the task's purpose. This timeline will be used as a 
measurement tool for progress in the project's implementation and is included in the required Quarterly Reports. 
Also, FEMA uses the timeline for determining the approved period of performance. It will be the basis used to 
justify delays or extensions, if necessary, and should be estimated carefully. The first and last entries are state 
requirements and have already been entered. The timeline ties into the narrative Scope of Work and the line-item 
budget. 

Task 1: ~;1i,~i~k~t~;G"i:~~t:~~~i'fiie~t~~~tjf~~;;;Npi}ij'fi~t$uh~r~~ii¢~r;~;F:c.[}.':,'"'·~;~ Timeframe: 2 months 

Task 2: ;~{ir:~t~l~Jff~i~{~f;~!1~~~\~ti~~ti}t~f~~~i~~t~f.:ri:4.~~~ Timeframe: 

Task 3: ~(ftJ~;"}i~i!~~~~Mtfi~ Time frame: 
-----

4 months 

Task 6: 

Task 8: '~i:;1~~ty ~~\il$~)i:~l:~J1~ ~:$~p· ~U::: i~~Q~l''~ . 
· NctM' .. will ·then _. conduct' a fmaV fi!:~l<i ~~~pection.;'· i.iispec:f'Joc~lrfiJ~s "_ 

,r~!at~ct . :t~· .~e; project;:' iuici :9btaht'~O.Pie.s· it\fEMA ~requJi-ed · ~~qui~J~ion · 
·. : clcis~oJitd~l~vej;ipl~s' tl:Jiit are::referft:d,.{o . iti ~tl!e 'U,IIMA puidance and ' 

·F'E.M .• <f-AW:iifd ietiei. '>~;, ·j,;'·'l'~.· ,)·- ·, ,/,> : · :· <' : .: • :)·<. • • '. · · 

Total Timeframe (must not exceed 1,095 days, 36 months, or 3 years) 

"-" .,, 

Time:frame: to rhonths~ 

Timeframe: · : 3 irlo~ths 

Timeframe: 

. -39 · 

*Each structure will be demolished within 90 days of closing in accordance with 44 CFR 80.17(c)(6). 

2. T he start date for any proposed project begins upon FEMA approval. If a specific timeframe is needed , 
provide an explanation. 

Start date would encompass FEMA review and obligation and subsequent drafting, review, and circulation of 
NCEM-Watauga County Grant Agreement. 

VI. ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS 

List two feasible alternative projects to mitigate the hazard(s) in the proj ect area. One alternative is the "No Action 
Alternative." 

1. No Action Alternative 
Discuss the impacts on the proj ect area if no action is taken. 

A. Not taking a mitigation action is an option, but not an acceptable one. The reasoning for rejecting the No Action 
Alternative is that doing so will not mitigate any risks. The entire project area is in the 100-year floodplain . 
Without any action of the impacted structures future 1 00-year or greater flood events would cause significant 
damages and/or loss of life. 

11 

080514 BCC Meeting

89



2. Other Feasible A lternative Project Title: 
Elevation 

A. Project Description and Scope of Work 
Discuss a feasible alternative to the proposed project. This could be an entirely different mitigation method or a 
significant modification to the design of the current proposed project. Please include scope of work, 
engineering details (if applicable), estimated budget and the impacts of this alternative. Also, explain how the 
alternative project will solve the problem(s) and/or provide protection for the hazard(s). 

l. The second alternative is to elevate the 2 structures this program was voluntary and the applicants did 
not want to be elevated. Note on project costs: project costs were estimated based on NCEM standard 
values for elevation, including $60/sq foot for elevation/foundation retrofit, and $26,200 for soft costs, 
relocation, and other expenses. This estimate is based on best available data from successful elevations 
in eastern North Carolina and is for planning purposes only. 

B. Other Feasible Project Location 

l. Attach a map or diagram showing the alternative site in relation to the proposed project site. (same site 
as project submitted) 

2. Photographs of alternative site. (Same as project submitted) 

C. Funding Sources (round figures to the nearest dollar). The maximum Federal share for all mitigation projects is 
75%. The remaining 25% (non-Federal share is the responsibility of the applicant. HMGP funds may be 
packaged with other Federal funds; however, on Federal funds which lose their Federal identity at the State 
level may be used for the non-Federal share. Please list below the funding amounts for the proposed alternative 
project. 

Proposed Project Total Cost: 

75% Federal Share: 

25% Non-Federal Match: 

D. Impacts of Other Feasible Alternative Project 

L 215,874.00 
. . 

$ )61,905.50 
$ J s3,9sif5o · 

Discuss the impact of this alternative on the project area. Include comments on these issues: Environmental 
Justice; Endangered Species; Wetlands, Hydrology (Upstream and Downstream Impacts);Floodplain/Flood
way; Historic Issues; Hazardous Materials. 

VII. ENVIRONMENTAL REQUIREMENTS 

The applicant must provide certain environmental documentation to the state before the State and FEMA can adequately 
review any proposed project. The Council on Environmental Quality (CEQ) has developed regulations to implement the 
National Environmental Policy Act (NEP A). These regulations, as set forth in Title 40, Code of the Federal Regulations 
(CFR) Parts 1500-1508, require an investigation of the potential environmental impacts of a proposed federal action, and an 
evaluation of alternatives as part of the environmental assessment process. The FEMA regulations that establish the agency
specific process for implementing NEPA are set forth in 44 CFR Subpart 10. 

As any proposed project requires specific documentation relative to its potential effect on the physical, biological and built 
environment, the below sections will assist you in insuring proper documentation is submitted for your respective project. In 
some instances, additional documentation may be required prior to funding. 

NOTE: In coordinating with the below listed agencies, please provide several original photographs of the project site 
and adjacent area/structures, a description of the project referencing structure/site addresses, and a map of sufficient 
scale and detail that show the project site and surrounding project area (area of potential effects). 

Attach documentation (letters, permits, etc.) from coordination with the following Federal and State agencies. For region
specific contacts, addresses, and phone numbers, please refer to Appendix A of this handbook. 

12 

080514 BCC Meeting

90



Environmental Requirement Coordinating Agency 
Attached to 
Application 

Na_tionaliUstoric'J>reservation Act: l(istorical $tr_tictilres and'Archeological Resou~ces ·.· 

Does your proj ect affect or is it in close proximity to any buildings or Yes- attached 
structures of any kind? State Historic Preservation Office 
Does your project involve disturbance of ground? 

Endangered Species Act aild Fish and WjJdlife Coordination J\~t . . 
.· .. ,· 

,. . . 

Does your project remove vegetation? Minimal 

Yes- letter 
requesting 

Is your project in or near any type of waterway or body of water? (within Y, review 
mile) attached-

(awaiting 
u.s. Department of the Interior (Fish reply) 

Is the project not contained within existing structures, or may it result in and Wildlife Service) 
No changes or potential effects to the natural environment? & 

State Categorical Exclusion Potential-
Document letter 

Are there threatened or endangered species or their critical habitat present in 
requesting 

review 
the project area or within the county the project is located within? 

attached-
(awaiting 

reply) 

Will this activity require an Aquatic Resource Alteration Permit? No 

: ·pea~ Watc~.Act,-~vers and IJar~ors 'Act, an(J.'Ii;~e¢.u(i~eJ>'rMt U990.{Jirotection or Wetlands) . .·::.·:·· · .. . . . '. - . . ---·· . --·· . . . .. ... . - · ---.-- . . . . -· . . .. . 

Will the project involve work near or in a waterway, dredging or disposal of 
No (but 

dredged material, excavation, adding fill material or result In any U.S. Army Corps of Engineers consultation modification to water bodies or wetlands designed as "waters of the U.S." as 
letter 

identified by the US Army Corps of Engineers or on the National Wetland 
attached) 

Inventory? 

Will the project require a National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System NC Department of Environment & 
No (NPDES) permit from the U.S . Environmental Protection Agency? Natural Resources 

Ejecutive·Qtde)"J1?88(Fl()!>dplain 1\fli~~gefil~P.t) ···:•:,,;:~·. ',: ·/-<. . ·· ... ·· ...... ; . ·,. >> ,., .. ·>: . ..·• .. .. 

Is the project located in a FEMA identified 100 or 500 year floodplain (on a 
FIRM map), in a FEMA identified floodway, or identified as a floodplain National Flood Insurance Program n/a 
through some other source? 

Does the project alter a watercourse, water flood patterns, or a drainage way, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 
regardless of its floodplain designation? Will the activity require a CLOMR & No 
(Conditional Letter of Map Revision)? National Flood Insurance Program 

Jfar~I~Jid .Protect~<i~),~olicyAct · :. : ··· ·' 
.. . ·'· ·: . .. ' · . 

•' 

Will the project convert more than 5 acres of farmland outside community 
limits and require documentation from the USDA National Resource U.S . Department of Agriculture No 
Conservation Service (Prime, Unique or other Important Farmlands)? 

llazifrdous aJ;Id l'oxi~ Materials~.: · ~ : . · . . -... · : .: . ·:· . .. . . . 
.. . . 

Is there a reason to suspect there are contaminants from a current or part use 
No on the property associated with the proposed project? 

Are there any studies, investigations, or enforcement action related to the Hazardous Materials Property No property associated with the proposed project? Survey 
Do any project construction or operation activities involve the use of Individual Property Survey Form 

No hazardous or toxic materials, i.e., asbestos, lead paint, heavy metals, etc.? 

Do you know what the current and past land-uses are of the property 
No affected by the proposed project and the adjacent properties? 

13 

080514 BCC Meeting

91



VIII. 

Environmental Requirement Coordinating Agency 
Attached to 
Application 

Executive Order 'ii898; Enviro~nienf:_tVHistoric Preservation JusticeJor Lowljicome and MinorityPopuiations 
Is the project in an area of low income or minority populations and require 

Census info 
documentation on Environmental Justice information (census, economics, 

in narrative housing, and employment)? 
U.S. Census Bureau 

Will the project cause any changes that may affect nearby low income or 
minority populations result in adverse effects, or change availability of No 
services? 

Other Euvironmentill Laws or Jsslles .. 
Are there any controversial issues associated with this project? Local Applicant Narrative No 

Yes (public 
notice 

Have you conducted any public meetings or solicited public input or Local Applicant Narrative 
meeting will 

comments on your specific proposed mitigation activity(ies)? be held once 
funds are 
awarded) 

Will this activity require a Construction Stormwater Permit? 
NC Department of Environment & 

No 
Natural Resources 

Additional Comments 

Enter any additional comments related to environmental concerns for the proposed project if desired. 

ASSURANCES -Part 80.13 

As the authorized representative of this application, I certify that...:_ Watauga County_, hereinafter called the Applicant will: 
Name of Applicant Ensure that participation by property owners is voluntary. The prospective participants have been informed 
in writing that participation in the program is voluntary, that the Applicant will not use its eminent domain authority to 
acquire their property for the project purposes should negotiations fail; 

1. Ensure each property owner will be informed, in writing, of what the Applicant considers to be the fair market value of 
the property. The Applicant will use the Model Statement of Voluntary Transaction to document this and will provide a 
copy for each property after award; 

2. Accept all of the requirements of the FEMA grant and the deed restriction governing the use of the land, as restricted in 
perpetuity to open-space uses. The Applicant will apply and record a deed restriction on each property in accordance 
with the language in the FEMA Model Deed Restriction. The community will seek FEMA approval, via the State, for 
any changes in language differing from the Model Deed Restriction. 

3. Ensure that the land will be unavailable for the constmction of flood damage reduction levees and other incompatible 
purposes, and is not part of an intended, planned, or designated project area for which the land is to be acquired by a 
certain date; 

4. Demonstrate that it has consulted with the US Army Corps of Engineers regarding the subject land's potential future use 
for the construction of a levee system, and will reject future consideration of such use if it accepts FEMA assistance to 
convert the property to permanent open-space; 

5. Demonstrate that it has coordinated with its State Department of Transportation to ensure that no future, planned 
improvements or enhancements to the Federal aid systems are under consideration that will affect the subject property; 

6. Remove existing structures within 90 days of settlement; 

7. Post grant award, ensure that if property interested is conveyed, it is only with the prior approval of the FEMA Regional 
Director, via the State, and only to another public entity or to a qualified conservation organization pursuant to 26 CFR 
1.170A-14; 

14 

080514 BCC Meeting

92



8. Submit every three years to the Grantee, who will then submit to the FEMA Regional Director, a report certifying that it 
has inspected the subject property within the month preceding the report, and that the property continues to be 
maintained consistent with the provisions of the grant. If the subject property is not maintained according to the terms of 
the grant, the State and FEMA, its representatives, designated authorities, and assigns are responsible for taking measures 
to bring the property back into compliance; and 

9. Not seek or accept the provision of, after settlement, disaster assistance for any purpose from any Federal entity with 
respect to the property, and FEMA will not distribute flood insurance ben.efits for that property for claims related to 
damage occurring after the date of the property settlement. 

I 0. Assure the project will meet all national, state or local codes and standards applicable for the jurisdiction including, but 
not limited to, building, construction, public notification, floodplain development, etc. 

I 1. Accept responsibility, at its own expense if necessary, for the routine maintenance of any real property, structures, or 
facilities acquired or constructed as a result of such Federal aid. Routine maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, 
such responsibilities as keeping vacant land clear of debris, garbage, and vermin; keeping stream channels, culverts, and 
storm drains clear of obstructions and debris; and keeping detention ponds free of debris, trees, and woody growth. 

As the duly authorized representative of the Applicant, I hereby certify that the Applicant will comply with the identified 
assurances and certifications. 

Date Signed 

15 

080514 BCC Meeting

93



IX. ASSURANCES- Construction Programs SF424D 

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15 minutes per response, including time for 
reviewing instructions, searching existing data sources, gathering and maintairring the data needed, and completing and 
reviewing the collection of information. Send comments regarding the burden estimate or any other aspect of this collection of 
information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to the Office of Management and Budget, Paperwork Reduction 
Project (0348-0042), Washington, DC 20503. 

PLEASE DO NOT RETURN YOUR COMPLETED FORM TO THE OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET. 
SEND IT TO THE ADDRESS PROVIDED BY THE SPONSORING AGENCY. 

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have questions, please contact the Awarding 
Agency. Further, certain Federal assistance award ing agencies may require applicants to certify to additional assurances. If such 
is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal 7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 

2. 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

assistance, and the institutional, managerial and using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
financial capability including funds sufficient to pay the presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
non-Federal share of project costs to ensure proper confl ict of interest, or personal ga in . 
planning, management and comp letion of the project 
described in this application. 

Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller 
General of the United States and, if appropriate, the 
State, through any authorized representative , access 
to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, 
or documents related to the assistance; and wi ll 
estab lish a proper accounting system in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting standards or 
agency directives. 

Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the 
terms of the real property title, or other interest in the 
site and facilities without permission and instructions 
from the awarding agency. Will record the Federal 
interest in the title of real property in accordance with 
awarding agency directives and will include a 
covenant in the title of real property acquired in whole 
or in part with Federa l assistance funds to assure non
discrimination during the useful life of the project. 

Will comp ly with the requirements of the assistance 
awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review 
and approval of construction plans and specifications . 

Will provide and maintain competent and adequate 
engineering supervision at the construction site to 
ensure that the complete work conforms with the 
approved plans and specifications and will furnish 
progress reports and such other information as may 
be required by the assistance awarding agency or 
state. 

W ill initiate and complete the work within the 
applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the 
awarding agency. 

8. 

9. 

Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel act 
of 1970 (42 U.S .C. §§4728-4763) relating to 
prescribed standards for merit systems for programs 
funded under one of the 19 statutes or regu lations 
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a 
Merit System of Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 
900, Subpart F) . 

Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead-based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

10. Wi ll comply with all Federal statutes relating to non
discrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-
352) which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
race, color or national origin; (b) Title IX of the 
Education Amendments of 1972, as amended (20 
U.S.C. §§1681-1683, and 1685-1686), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of Sex; (c) Section 504 of 
the Rehabi litation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. 
§794), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
handicaps; (d) the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as 
amended (42 U.S.C. §§6101-6107), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse 
Office and Treatment Act f 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the bas is of 
drug abuse; (f) the Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and 
Alcoholism Prevention, Treatment and Rehabilitation 
Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of alcohol abuse or 
alcoho lism; (g) §§523 and 527 of the Public Health 
Service A.ct of 1912 (42 U.S.C. §§290 dd-3 and 290 
ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentially of alcohol 
and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Act of 1968 (42 U.S .C. §§3601 et seq.), 

16 

080514 BCC Meeting

94



I Hazard Mitigation Application Continued 

as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 
rental or finan cing of housing; (i) any other 
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) 
under which application for Federal assistance is 
being made; and U) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Titles II and Ill of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acqu isition 
Policies Act of 1970 (P.L. 91 -646) which provide for 
fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced or 
whose property is acquired as a result of Federal and 
federal-assisted programs. These requirements apply 
to all interests in real property acquired for project 
purposes regardless of Federal participation in 
purchases. 

12. Will comply with the provisions of the Hatch Act (5 
U.S.C. §§1501-1508 and 7324-7328) wh ich limit the 
political activities of employees whose principal 
employment activities are funded in whole or in part 
with Federal funds . 

13. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§276a to 276a-7), the 
Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. §276c and 18 U.S.C. §874) , 
and the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards 
Act (40 U.S.C. §§327-333) regarding labor standards 
for federally-assisted construction sub agreements. 

14. Will comply with flood insurance purchase 
requirements of Section 1 02(a) of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate 
in the program and to purchase flood insurance if the 
total cost of insurable construction and acquisition is 
$10,000 or more. 

15. Will comply with environmenta l standards which may 
be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution 
of environmenta l quality control measures under the 

NCEM Hazard Mitigation Branch 

National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-
1 90) and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification 
of violating facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) 
protection of wetlands pursuant to EO 11 990; (d) 
eva luation of flood hazards in floodplains in 
accordance with EO 11 988; (e) assurance of project 
consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone 
Management Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. §§1451 et seq.); 
(f) conformity of Federal actions to State (C lean Air) 
Implementation Plans under Section 176(c) of the 
Clean Air Act of 1955, as amended (42 U.S.C. §§7401 
et seq.); (g) protection of underground sources of 
drinking water under the Safe Drinking Water Act of 
1974, as amended (PL. 93-523); and, (h) protection of 
endangered species under the Endangered Species 
Act of 1973, as amended (P.L. 93-205) . 

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. §§1271 et seq.) related to protecting 
components or potential components of the national 
wi ld and scenic rivers system. 

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring 
comp liance with Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 
§4 70), EO 11593 (identification and protection of 
historic properties), and the Archaeological and 
Historic Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. §§469a-1 
et seq .). 

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial and 
compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act Amendments of 1996 and OMB Circu lar No. A-
133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations." 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all 
other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations, and 
policies governing this program. 

SF-4240 (Rev. 7-97) Back 

17 

080514 BCC Meeting

95



[Hazard Mitigation Application Co ntinued NCEM Hazard Mitigation Branch 

X. ASSURANCES Government Wide Requirements for Drug Free Workplace 
44CFR17 

Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters ; and Drug-Free 
Workplace Requirements 

Section 17.630 of the regulations provide th at a grantee that is a State may elect to make one cert ification in each Federal 
fisca l year. A copy of which should be included with each application for FEMA funding . States and State agencies may elect 
to use a Statewide certification. 

Applicants should refer to the reg ulations cited below to determine the certi fica tion to which they are required to attest 
Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form . 
Signature on this form provides for compliance with certifi cation requirements under 44 CFR Part 18, "New Restrictions on 
Lobbying; and 28 CFR Part 17, "Government-wide Debarment and suspension (Non-procurement) and Government-wide 
Requirements for Drug-Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon 
which reliance will be placed when the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) determines to award the covered 
transaction , grant, or cooperative agreement 

1. LOBBYING 

A. As required by the section 1352, Title 31 of the US Code, and implemented at 44 CFR Part 18 for persons entering 
into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100,000, as defin ed at 44 CFR Part 18, the applicant certifies that : 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid , by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person 
for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer 
or employee of congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the making of any Federal 
grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement and extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or 
modifi cation of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement; 

(b) If any other funds than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or 
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of 
Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative 
agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities", 
in accordance with its instructions; 

(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all 
the sub awards at all tiers (including subgrants , contracts under grants and cooperative ag reements, and 
subcontract(s)) and that all subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. 

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS (DIRECT RECIPIENT) 

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 44 CFR Part 67, for prospective 
participants in primary covered transactions, as defined at 44 CFR Part 17, Section 17.51 0-A. The applicant certifies that it 
and its principals: 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of 
Federal benefits by a State or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal 
department or agency; 

{b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a civilian judgment 
rendered aga inst them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obta ining, attempting to 
obtain, or perform a public (Federal, State, or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction ; violation of 
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft , forgery, bribery, falsification or 
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving sto len property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State, 
or loca lly) with commiss ion of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1 )(b) of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, 
State, or loca l) terminated for cause or default; and 

B. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she sha ll attach an 
explanation to this application. 

3. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) 

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 44 CFR Part 17, Subpart F, for grantees, as 
defined at 44 CFR part 17, Sections 17.615 and 17.623: 

18 

080514 BCC Meeting

96



I Hazard Mitigation Application Continued NCEM Hazard Mitigation Branch 

(A) The app licant certifies that it will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by: 

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture , distribution, dispensing, possession, 
or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and specifying the actions that will be 
taken against employees for violation of such prohibition; 

(b) Establishing an on-going drug free awareness program to inform employees about: 

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

(3) Any avai lable drug counseling, rehabilitation and employee assistance programs; and 

(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace; 

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant to be given a copy of 
the statement required by paragraph (a); 

(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the 
grant, the employee will: 

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

(2) Notify the employee in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the 
workplace no later than five calendar days after such conviction . 

(e) Notifying the agency, in writing within 10 ca lendar days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d)(2) from an 
employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction. Employers of convicted employees must 
provide notice, including position title , to the applicable FEMA awarding office, i.e. regional office or FEMA office. 

(f) Taking one of the following actions against such an employee, within 30 ca lendar days of rece iving notice under 
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted: 

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including termination, consistent 
with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended; or 

(2) Require such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program 
approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health , law enforcement or other appropriate 
agency. 

(g) Making a good effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), 
(b), (c), (d), (e), and (f) . 

(B) The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in connection with 
the specific grant: 

Place of Performance Street City State Zip Code 
Watau2a County_ 184 Hodges Gap Road ~. Boone . : ·. NC ·28607 .j 

" -" .. . . 
l~· ,. _: 

: •';' " " .··· ·•' •·. ... , .. 
. ·"' . .. 

19 

080514 BCC Meeting

97



North Carolina Division of Emergency Management 
Summary Sheet for Application Assurances and Certifications 

Name of Applicant: Watauga County 

Project Title: Watauga Co1mty 

Applicant's Designated Agent: Deron Geouque 

This summary sheet references Assurances and Certifications that must be read, signed and submitted as part of each 
application for hazard mitigation funding. The Applicant's Designated Agent must indicate each item included in the 
application package. Failure to submit this required information will result in the delay or possible removal of the 
application from hazard mitigation funding consideration. 

The complete application package includes submittal of the following items: 

GJ Application for hazard mitigation funding 

Q Certified, Double-sided Designation of Applicant's Agent form 

GJ Signed Maintenance Agreement 

[X] Signed SF424- Application for Federal Assistance 

[X] Signed FEMA Form 20-16 which includes the following: 

FEMA Fmm 20-16A- Assurances- Non-Construction Programs (if applicable to project type) 

FEMA Form 20-168- Assurances- Construction Programs (if applicable to project type) 

Completed FEMA Fonn 20-16C- Certifications Regarding Lobbying: Debannent, Suspension, and Other 
Responsibility Matters: and Drug Free Workplace Requirements 

Completed and Signed SF LLL- Disclosure of Lobbying Activities 

The undersigned certifies that the checked items have been read and signed. 

Deron Geougue 
Name of Designated Agent Title 

Co! m ty Manager 

Signature of Designated Agent Date 

080514 BCC Meeting

98



080514 BCC Meeting

99



APPLICANT ASSURANCES 

The applicant hereby assures and certifies that it will comply with the FEMA regulations, policies, guidelines and requirements including, but not lin1ited to the fo llowing authorities: 
OMB Circulars Nos. A-87, A-95, A- 102 and A- 110, where applicable, and Part 13 of Title 44 of the Code of Federal Regulations (C.F.R.), as they relate to the application, acceptance 
and use of Federal funds for this Federally assisted project. Also, tlte Applicant gives assurance and certifies with respect to and as a condition for the grant that: 

I. It possesses legal authority to apply for the grant, and to finance and construct the 
proposed facilities; that a resolution, motion or sin1ilar action has been duly adopted or 
passed as an official act of the applicant's governiJ1g body, authorizing the filing of the 
application, including all understandings and assurance contained therein, and directing 
and authorizing the person identified as the official representative of the applicant to act 
in connection with the application and to provide such add itional infonnation as may be 
required. 

2. It will comply with the provisions of: Executive Order 11988, relating to Floodplain 
Management and Executive Order 11990, relating to Protection of Wetlands. 

15. It will comp ly with the provisions of the Hatch Act which limit the political activity of 
employees. 

16. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum hours provisions of the Federal 
Fair Labor Standards Act, as they apply to hospital and educational institution 
emolovees of State and local governments. 

17. (To the best of his knowledge and belief) the disaster relief work described on each 
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Project Application for which 
Federal Financial assistance is requested is eligible in accordance with the criteria 
contained in 44 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 205, and applicable FEMA 
Handbooks. 

3. It will have sufficient funds ava ilable to meet the non-Federal share of the cost for 18. The emergency or disaster relief work therein described for which Federal Assistance is 
construction projects. Sufficient funds will be available when construction is completed 
to assure effective operation and maintenance of the facility for the purpose constructed. 

requested hereunder does not or will not duplicate benefits received for the same loss 
from another source. 

4. It will not enter into a construction contract(s) for the project or undertake other 19. It will (I) provide without cost to the United States all lands, easements and rights-of-
activities until the conditions of the grant program(s) have been met. way necessary for accomplislunent of the approved work; (2) hold and save the United 

5. It will provide and maintain competent and adequate architectural engineering States free from damages due to the approved work or Federal funding. 
supervision and inspection at the construction si te to insure that the completed work 
confonms with the approved plans and specifi cations; that it will furnish progress reports 20. This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all 
and such other information as the Federal grant or agency may need. Federal grants, loans, reimbursements, advances, contracts, property, discounts of other 

6. It will operate and maintain the facility in accordance wi th the minimum standards as 
may be required or prescribed by the applicable Federal , State and local agencies for the 
maintenance and operation of such faci lities. 

7. It will give tl1e grantor agency and the Comptroller General, through any authorized 
representative, access to and the right to examine all records, books, papers, or 
documents related to the grant. 

Federal fmancial assistance extended after the date hereof to the Applicant by FEMA 
that such Federal Financial assistance will be extended in reliance on the representations 
and agreements made in this assurance and that the United States shall have the right to 
seek judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the applicant, 
its successors, transferees, and ass ignees, and the person or persons whose signatures 
appear on the reverse as authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the app licant. 

8. It will require the facility to be designed to comply with the "American Standard 2 1. It will comply with the flood insurance purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the 
Specifications for Making Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, and Usable by the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public Law 93-234, 87 Stat. 975, approved 
Physically Handicapped," Number All7.1-1961, as modified (41 CFR 101-17-7031). December 31, 1973. Section 102(a) requires, on and after March 2, 1975, the purchase 
The applicant wil l be responsible for conducting inspections to insure compliance with of fl ood insurance in communities where such insurance is available as a condition for 
these specifications by the contractor. the receipt of any Federal fmancial assistance for construction or acquisition purposes 

9. It will cause work on the project to be commenced within a reasonable tin1e after receipt for use in any area that has been identified by tllC Director, Federal Emergency 
of notification from the approving Federal agency that fund s have been approved and Management Agency as an area having special flood hazards. The phrase "Federal 
will see that work on the project will be prosecuted to completion with reasonable financial assistance" includes any form of loan, grant, guaranty, insurance payment, 
diligence. rebate, subsidy, disaster assistance loan or grant, or any other form of direct or indirect 

10. It will not dispose of or encumber its title or other interests in the site and facilities Federal assistance. 
during the period of Federal interest or whi le the Government holds bonds, whichever is 
the longer. 

II. It agrees to comply with Section 3 11. P.L. 93-288 and \vith Title VI of the Civil Rights 22. It will comply with the insurance requirements of Section 314, P.L. 93-288, to obtain 
act of 1964 (P.L. 83-352) and in accordance wi th Title VI of the Act, no person in the and maintain any other insurance as may be reasonable, adequate, and necessary to 
United States shall , on the ground of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from protect against further loss to any property which was replaced, restored, repaired, or 
participation in , be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination constructed with this assurance. 
under any program or activity for which the applicant receives Federal fmancial 23. It will defer funding of any projects involving flexible fund ing until FEMA makes a 
assistance and wi !J immediately take any measures necessary to effectuate this favorable environmental clearance, if this is required. 
agreement. If any real property or structure is provided or improved with the aid of 24. It will assist the Federal grantor agency in its compliance with Section I 06 of the 
Federal fmancial assistance extended to the Applicant, this assurance shall obligate the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, (16 U.S.C. 470), Executive 
Applicant, or in the case of any transfer of such property, any transferee, for the period Order 11593, and the Archeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (16 U.S.C. 
during which the real property or structure is used for a pu!JlOSe for which the Federal 469a- l et seq.) by (a) consulting with the State Historic Preservation Officer on the 
fmancial assistance is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of similar conduct of investigations, as necessary, to identify properties listed in or eligible for 
services or benefits. inclusion in the National Register of Historic places that are subject to adverse effects 

12. It wi ll es tablish safeguards to prohibit employees from using their positions for a 
purpose that is or gives the appearance of being motivated by a desire for private gain 
for themselves or otl1ers, particularly those with whom they have fam ily, business, or 
other ties. 

(see 36 CFR Part 800.8) by the activity, and notifying the Federal grantor agency of the 
existence of any such properties, and by (b) complying with all requirements established 
by tile Federal grantor agency to avo id or mitigate adverse effects upon such properties. 

13. It will comply with the requirements of Title II and Title III of the Uniform Relocation 25. It will for any repairs or construction fmanced herewith, comply with applicable 
Assistance and Real Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provides standards of safety, decency and sanitation and in conformity with applicab le codes, 
for fair and equitable treatment of persons displaced as a result of Federal and Federally- specifications and standards; and, will evaluate the natural hazards in areas in which the 
assisted programs. proceeds of tile grant or loan are to be used and take appropriate action to mitigate such 

14. It will comply with all requirements in1posed by the Federal grantor agency concerning hazards, including safe land use and construction practices. 
special requirements of law, program requirements, and other administrative 
requirements approved in accordance with OMB Circular A-102, P.L. 93-288 as 
amended, and applicable Federal Regulations. 

STATE ASSURANCES 
The State agrees to take any necessary action within State capabilities to require 
compliance with these assurances and agreements by the applicant or to asswne 
responsibility to the Federal government for any deficiencies not resolved to the 
satisfaction of the Regional Director. 

080514 BCC Meeting

100



North Carolina Division of Emergency Management 
Maintenance Agreement 

All Applicants must sign this maintenance agreement should the proposed project involve the retrofit or modification of 
existing public property or result in the public ownership or management of property, structures, equipment, or facilities. 

NOTE: This form does not have to be completed for projects that involve retrofitting, elevation, or other modification to 
private property where the ownership will remain private after project completion. 

---'W""a""'t""'a""'u,..g~a=-Co=nn-'=-'""'t~y ____________ , of the State of North Carolina, hereby agrees 
(Name of Applicant) 

that if it receives any Federal aid as a result of the attached project application, it will accept responsibility, at its own 
expense if necessary, for the routine maintenance of any property, structures, equipment or faci lities acquired or 

constructed as a result of such Federal aid. Routine maintenance shall include, but not be limited to, such 
responsibilities as keeping vacant land clear of debris; stream channels, culverts, and storm drains clear of obstructions 
and debris; detention/retention ponds free of debris, trees, and woody growth; and maintaining equipment in an operable 
state. 

By signing this agreement, the Applicant acknowledges and accepts maintenance responsibility to preserve the long
tenn mitigation effectiveness of the project. It does not rep lace, supersede, or add to any other maintenance 
responsibilities imposed by Federal laws or regulations which are in force on the date of project award. 

Oeron GernJ~lle 
(Name of Designate Agent) 

County Manager 
(Title) 

of Designated Agent) (Date) 

080514 BCC Meeting

101



APPLICATION FOR OMB Approval No. 0348-0043 

FEDERAL ASSISTANCE !2. DATE SUBMITTED Applicant Identifier 

j1. TYPE OF SUBMISSION: 3. DATE RECEIVED BY STATE State Application Identifier 

Application Preapptication [j Construction El Construction 4. DATE RECENEO BY FEDERAL AGENCY Federa l Identifier 

Non-Construction Non-Construction 

~PPLICANT 

llcegat Name: ~t.;:u;rn C'n ntv !Unit: 

[Address (give city, county :State, and zip code): Name and telephone number of person to be contacted on matters involving 

184 ~ Gcp lb:rl 
this application (give area code) 828-X>4-4235 

&:xie K: 2Pf:IJ7 S~&rlErth 

6. EMPlOYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER (EIN): S.a. DUNS NUMBER 7. TYPE OF APPLICANT: (enter appropriate letter in box) Gil 
~ -1610 0 1118 ~ 161 lolsl9llllslsl211161 

A. State H. Independent School Dis!. 

8. TYPE OF APPLICATION: B. County I. State Controlled tnsUtulion of Higher Learning 

QNew Ocontinuation O Revision C. Municipal J. Private University 

D. Township K. Indian Tribe 

If Revision, enter appropriate tetler(s) in box(es) D D E. Interstate L. Individual 

F. tntenmunicipal M. Profit Organization 

A Increase Award 8. Decrease Award C. Decrease Duration G. Special District N. Other (Specify) 

D. Decrease Duration Other (specify): 

9. NAME OF FEDERAL AGENCY: 

Federal Emergency I Agency 
10. CATALOG OF FEDERAL DOMESTIC ASSISTANCE NUMBER: 11. DESCRIPTIVE TITLE OF APPLICANT'S PROJECT: 

DD -1 I I I 
TITLE: 

12. AREAS AFFECTED BY PROJECT (Cities, Counties, States, etc.): 

rn - 4153 

11 3. PROPOSED PROJECT: 11 4. ' . DISTRICTS OF: 1\T {" ')th 
Start Date Ending Date a. Applicant 

LU~ 

r :je: a1'11 
r:~n. ... {", 

15. ESTIMATED FUNDING: ~ '-"""-"- '~J 11 6. ISAPPUCATION SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY STATE EXECUTNE 

a. Federal ORDER 12372 PROCESS? 

$ 1h1 q)') 'n 
b. Applicant 

-, 
a. YES. THIS PREAPPLICATION/APPUCATION WAS MADE AVAILABLE 

$ 0 TO THE STATE EXECUTIVE ORDER 12372 PROCESS FOR 

c. State 
53,%8 .~ 

REVIEW ON: 

$ 
d. Local DATE: 

$ 0 
e. Other b. NO. ~PROGRAM IS NOT COVERED BY E.O. 12372 

$ 0 OR PROGRAM HAS NOT BEEN SELECTED BY STATE FOR 

r. Program Income REVIEW 

$ 0 17. IS THE APPLICANT DELINQUENT ON ANY FEDERAL DEBT? 

g. TOTAL 

?15-,874_m 
O ves If "Yes," attach an explanation D Na 

$ -
8. TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, All DATA IN THIS APPLICATION/PREAPPLICATION ARE TRUE AND CORRECT, THE DOCUMENT HAS BEEN 

DULY AUTHORIZED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE APPLICANT AND THE APPLICANT WILL COMPLY WHH THE ATIACHEO ASSURANCES IF THE ASSISTANCE 

IS AWARDED. 

a. Type Name of Authorized Representative b. Tille c. Telephone Number 

IEru1 C'-«t n P Ca.ntv .. _ 828-265-aro 

~--''""'""'"'" e. Date Signed 

; Edition Usable Standard Form 424 (REV. 7-97) 
or Local Reproduction Prescribed by OMB Circular A-102 

080514 BCC Meeting

102



FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

SUMMARY SHEET FOR ASSURANCES AND CERTIFICATIONS 

CA FOR (Name of Applicant) 

O.M.B. No. 3067-0206 

Expires February 29, 2004 

sununary sheet includes Assurances and Certifications that must be 1·ead, signed, and submitted as a part of the 
tion for Federal Assistance. 

applicant must check each item that they are certifying to: 

Part I [i] 

Partll Q 

Partill Q 

PartlY Q 

FEMA Form20-16A, Assurances-Nonconstruction Programs 

FEMA Form20-16B, Assurances-Construction Programs 

FEMA Form20-16C, Certifications Regarding Lobbying; 

Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility 

Matters; and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 

SF LLL, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities (If applicable) 

the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the identified 
ttached assurances and certifications. 

Typed Name of Authorized Representative Title 

Signatu1·e of Authorized Representative Date Signed 

By signing the certification regarding debarment, suspension, and other responsibility matters fo1· primary covered 

l"a""'~"u", the applicant agrees that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knO\vingly ente1· 
any lower tier covered transaction with a pe1·son who is debaned, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntai'ily excluded 
participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by FEMA entering into this transaction. 

The applicant further agrees by submitting this application that it will include the clause titled "Certification 
rding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transaction," provided by 

FEMA Regional Office ente1·ing into this covered transaction, without modification, in all lower tier cove1·ed transactions 
in all solicitations for lower tiC!' covered transactions. (Refer to 44 CFR Part 17.) 

Paperwork Burden Disclosure Notice 

blic reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 1.7 hours per response. Burden means the time, effort and 

nancial resources expended by persons to generate, maintain, retain, disclose, or to provide information to us. You may 

send comments regarding the burden estimate or any aspect of the form, including suggestions for reducing the burden 

Information Collect ions Management, Federal Emergency Management Agency, 500 C Street, SW, Washington, DC 20472, 

rwork Reduction Project (3067..0206). You are not required to respond to this collection of information unless a valid 

B control number appears in the upper right corner of this form. Please do not send your completed form to the above 

FEMA Form 20-16, FEB 01 

080514 BCC Meeting

103



FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

ASSURANCES-NON-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

Note: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have any questions, please 
contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal awarding agencies may require applicants to certify to 
additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

I. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of 
project costs) to ensure proper planning, management and 
completion of the project described in this application. 

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller 
General of the United States, and if appropriate, the State, 
through any authorized representative, access to and the 
right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents 
related to the award; and will establish a proper accounting 
system in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
standards or agency directives. 

3. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal gain. 

4. Will initiate and complete the work within the 
applicable time frame after receipt of approval of the 
awarding agency. 

5. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel 
Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. Section 4728-4763) relating to 
prescribed standards for merit systems for programs 
funded under one of the nineteen statutes or regulations 
specified in Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit 
System of Personnel Administration) 5 C.F.R. 900, 
Subpart F). 

6. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
nondiscrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color 
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681-1683, and 
1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of1973, as 
amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
Sections 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act 
of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
nondiscrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, 
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91-616), as 
amended, relating to nondiscrimination on the basis of 

FEMA Form 20-16A, JUN 94 

alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) Sections 523 and 527 of 
the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290-dd-3 
and 290-ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (h) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Acts of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3601 et seq.), 
as amended, relating to nondiscrimination in the sale, 
rental or financing of housing; (i) any other 
nondiscrimination provisions in the specific statute(s) 
under which application for Federal assistance is being 
made; and U) the requirements of any other 
nondiscrimination statute(s) which may apply to the 
application. 

7. Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Title II and III of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act ofl970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair 
and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose 
property is acquired as a result of Federal or Federally 
assisted programs. These requirements apply to all 
interest in real property acquired for project purposes 
regardless of Federal participation in purchases. 

8. Will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 
U.S.C. Sections 1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit 
the political activities of employees whose principal 
employment activities are funded in whole or in part 
with Federal funds. 

9. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of 
the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. Sections 276a to 276a-
7), the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. Section 276c and 18 
U.S.C. Sections 874), and the Contract Work Hours 
and Safety Standards Act (40 U.S.C. Sections 327-333), 
regarding labor standards for federally assisted 
construction subagreements. 

10. Will comply, if applicable, with flood insurance 
purchase requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood 
Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which 
requires recipients in a special flood hazard area to 
participate in the program and to purchase flood 
insurance if the total cost of insurable construction and 
acquisition is $10,000 or more. 

080514 BCC Meeting

104



11. Will comply with environmental standards which may 
be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution 
of environmental quality control measures under the 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) 
and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating 
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in 
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. Section 1451 et seq.); (t) conformity 
of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of1955, 
as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.); (g) protection 
of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); 
and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, 
(P.L. 93-205). 

12. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. Section 1271 et seq.) related to 
protecting components or potential components of 
the national wild and scenic rivers system. 

13. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring 
compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), 
EO 11593 (identification and protection of historic 
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq.). 

FEMA Form 20-16A (BACK) 

14. Will comply with P.L. 93-348 regarding the 
protection of human subjects involved in research, 
development, and related activities supported by this 
award of assistance. 

15. Will comply with the Laboratory Animal Welfare Act 
of 1966 (P.L. 89-544, as amended, 7 U.S.C. 2131 et seq.) 
pertaining to the care, handling, and treatment of warm 
blooded animals held for research, teaching, or other 
activities supported by this award of assistance. 

16. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. Section 4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

17. Will cause to be performed the required financial 
and compliance audits in accordance with the Single 
Audit Act of 1984. 

18. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all 
other Federal laws, executive orders, regulations and 
policies governing this program. 

19. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum 
hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards 
Act (29 U.S.C. 201), as they apply to employees of 
institutions of higher education, hospitals, and other 
non-profit organizations. 

080514 BCC Meeting

105



FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

ASSURANCES-CONSTRUCTION PROGRAMS 

NOTE: Certain of these assurances may not be applicable to your project or program. If you have any questions, please 
contact the awarding agency. Further, certain Federal assistance awarding agencies may require applicants to 
certify to additional assurances. If such is the case, you will be notified. 

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I certify that the applicant: 

1. Has the legal authority to apply for Federal assistance, 
and the institutional, managerial and financial capability 
(including funds sufficient to pay the non-Federal share of 
project costs) to ensure proper planning, management and 
completion of the project described in this application. 

2. Will give the awarding agency, the Comptroller 
General of the United States, and if appropriate, the State, 
through any authorized representative, access to and the 
right to examine all records, books, papers, or documents 
related to the assistance; and will establish a proper 
accounting system in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting standards or agency directives. 

3. Will not dispose of, modify the use of, or change the 
terms of the real property title, or other interest in the site 
and facilities without permission and instructions from 
the awarding agency. Will record the Federal interest in 
the title of real property in accordance with awarding 
agency directives and will include a covenant in the 
title of real property acquired in whole or in part with 
Federal assistance funds to assure nondiscrimination 
during the useful life of the project. 

4. Will comply with the requirements of the assistance 
awarding agency with regard to the drafting, review and 
approval of construction plans and specifications. 

5. Will provide and maintain competent and adequate 
engineering supervision at the construction site to ensure 
that the complete work conforms with the approved plans 
and specifications and will furnish progress reports and 
such other information as may be required by the 
assistance awarding agency or state. 

6. Will initiate and complete the work within the applicable 
time frame after receipt of approval of the awarding agency. 

7. Will establish safeguards to prohibit employees from 
using their positions for a purpose that constitutes or 
presents the appearance of personal or organizational 
conflict of interest, or personal gain. 

8. Will comply with the Intergovernmental Personnel Act 
of 1970 (42 U.S.C. Sections 4728-4763) relating to prescribed 
standards for merit systems for programs funded under one 
of the nineteen statutes or regulations specified in 
Appendix A of OPM's Standards for a Merit System of 
Personnel Administration (5 C.F.R. 900, Subpart F). 

FEMA Form 20-168, JUN 94 

9. Will comply with the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. Sections 4801 et seq.) which 
prohibits the use of lead based paint in construction or 
rehabilitation of residence structures. 

10. Will comply with all Federal statutes relating to 
non-discrimination. These include but are not limited to: 
(a) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352) 
which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color 
or national origin; (b) Title IX of the Education Amendments 
of 1972, as amended (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681-1683, and 
1685-1686), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of 
sex; (c) Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as 
amended (29 U.S.C. Section 794), which prohibits 
discrimination on the basis of handicaps; (d) the Age 
Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended (42 U.S.C. 
Sections 6101-6107), which prohibits discrimination on the 
basis of age; (e) the Drug Abuse Office and Treatment Act 
of 1972 (P.L. 92-255), as amended, relating to 
non-discrimination on the basis of drug abuse; (f) the 
Comprehensive Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism Prevention, 
Treatment and Rehabilitation Act of 1970 (P.L. 91 -616), as 
amended, relating to non-discrimination on the basis of 
alcohol abuse or alcoholism; (g) Sections 523 and 527 of 
the Public Health Service Act of 1912 (42 U.S.C. 290 dd-3 
and 290 ee-3), as amended, relating to confidentiality of 
alcohol and drug abuse patient records; (b) Title VIII of the 
Civil Rights Acts of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3601 et seq.), 
as amended, relating to non-discrimination in the sale, rental 
or financing of housing; (i) any other non-discrimination 
provision in the specific statute(s) under which application 
for Federal assistance is being made; and U) the 
requirements of any other non-discrimination statute(s) 
which may apply to the application. 

11. Will comply, or has already complied, with the 
requirements of Title II and III of the Uniform 
Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition 
Policies Act of1970 (P.L. 91-646) which provide for fair 
and equitable treatment of persons displaced or whose 
property is acquired as a result of Federal or Federally 
assisted programs. These requirements apply to all 
interest in real property acquired for project purposes 
regardless of Federal participation in purchase. 

12. Will comply with provisions of the Hatch Act (5 U.S.C. 
Sections 1501-1508 and 7324-7328) which limit the 
political activities of employees whose principal employment 
activities are funded in whole or in part with Federal funds. 

080514 BCC Meeting

106



13. Will comply, as applicable, with the provisions of the 
Davis-Bacon Act ( 40 U.S.C. Sections 276a to 276a-7), 
the Copeland Act (40 U.S.C. Section 276c and 18 U.S.C. 
Section 874), the Contract Work Hours and Safety 
Standards Act (40 U.S.C. Sections 327-333) regarding 
labor standards for federally assisted construction 
subagreements. 

14. Will comply with the flood insurance purchase 
requirements of Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster 
Protection Act of 1973 (P.L. 93-234) which requires 
recipients in a special flood hazard area to participate in 
the program and to purchase flood insurance if the total 
cost of insurable construction and acquisition is $10,000 
or more. 

15. Will comply with environmental standards which may 
be prescribed pursuant to the following: (a) institution 
of environmental quality control measures under the 
National Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (P.L. 91-190) 
and Executive Order (EO) 11514; (b) notification of violating 
facilities pursuant to EO 11738; (c) protection of wetlands 
pursuant to EO 11990; (d) evaluation of flood hazards in 
floodplains in accordance with EO 11988; (e) assurance of 
project consistency with the approved State management 
program developed under the Coastal Zone Management 
Act of 1972 (16 U.S.C. Section 1451 et seq.); (f) conformity 
of Federal actions to State (Clean Air) Implementation 
Plans under Section 176(c) of the Clean Air Act of 1955, 
as amended (42 U.S.C. Section 7401 et seq.); (g) protection 
of underground sources of drinking water under the Safe 
Drinking Water Act of 1974, as amended, (P.L. 93-523); 
and (h) protection of endangered species under the 
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended, (P.L. 93-205). 

16. Will comply with the Wild and Scenic Rivers Act of 
1968 (16 U.S.C. Section 1271 et seq.) related to 
protecting components or potential components of the 
national wild and scenic rivers system. 

17. Will assist the awarding agency in assuring 
compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic 
Preservation Act of 1966, as amended (16 U.S.C. 470), 
EO 11593 (identification and preservation of historic 
properties), and the Archaeological and Historic 
Preservation Act of 1974 (16 U.S.C. 469a-1 et seq.). 

18. Will cause to be performed the required financial 
and compliance audits in accordance with the Single Audit 
Act of 1984. 

19. Will comply with all applicable requirements of all 
other Federal laws, Executive Orders, regulations and 
policies governing this program. 

FEMA Form 20-168 (BACK) 

20. It will comply with the minimum wage and maximum 
hours provisions of the Federal Fair Labor Standards 
Act (29 U.S.C. 201), as they apply to employees of 
institutions of higher education, hospitals, and other 
non-profit organizations. 

21. It will obtain approval by the appropriate Federal 
agency of the final working drawings and specifications 
before the project is advertised or placed on the market 
for bidding; that it will construct the project, or cause it to 
be constructed, to final completion in accordance with the 
application and approved plans and specifications; that it 
will submit to the appropriate Federal agency for prior 
approval changes that alter the cost of the project, use of 
space, or functional layout, that it will not enter into a 
construction contract(s) for the project or undertake other 
activities until the conditions of the construction grant 
program(s) have been met. 

22. It will operate and maintain the facility in accordance 
with the minimum standards as may be required or 
prescribed by the applicable Federal, State, and local 
agencies for the maintenance and operation of such 
facilities. 

23. It will require the facility to be designed to comply 
with the "American Standard Specifications for Making 
Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, and Usable by, 
the Physically Handicapped," Number A117. -1961, as 
modified (41 CFR 101-17.703). The applicant will be 
responsible for conducting inspections to ensure 
compliance with these specifications by the contractor. 

24. If any real property or structure thereon is provided 
or improved with the aid of Federal financial assistance 
extended to the applicant, this assurance shall obligate 
the applicant, or in the case of any transfer of such 
property, any transfer, for the period during which the 
real property or structure is used for a purpose for which 
the Federal financial assistance is extended or for 
another purpose involving the provision of similar 
services or benefits. 

25. In making subgrants with nonprofit institutions 
under this Comprehensive Cooperative Agreement, it 
agrees that such grants will be subject to OMB Circular 
A-122, "Cost Principles for Non-profit Organizations" 
included in Vol. 49, Federal Register, pages 18260 
through 18277 (April27, 1984). 

080514 BCC Meeting

107



FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY 

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION AND 
OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to attest. Applicants 
should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this form. Signature on this 
form provides for compliance with certification requirements under 44 CFR Part 18, "New Restrictions on Lobbying; and 28 CFR 
Part 17, "Government-wide Debarment and suspension (Nonprocurement) and Government-wide Requirements for Drug-Free 
Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon which reliance will be placed 
when the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) determines to award the covered transaction, grant, or cooperative 

agreement. 

1. LOBBYING 

A. As required by section 1352. Title 31 of the U.S. Code, and 

implemented at 44 CFR Part 18, for persons entering into a grant 

or cooperative agreement over $100,000 , as defined at 44 CFR 

Part 18, the applicant certifies that: 

(a) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, 

by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or 

attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a 

Member of Cong ress, an officer or employee of congress, or an 

employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the making 

of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement. 

and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification 

of any Federal grant or coopera tive agreement; 

(b) If any other funds than Federal appropriated funds have been 

paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to 

influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of 

Congress, an officer or an employee of Congress, or employee 

of a member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or 

cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit 

Standard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities." in 

accordance with its instructions ; 

(c) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification 

be included in the award documents for all subawards at all tiers 

(including subgrants, contracts under grants and cooperative 

agreements, and subcontract(s) and that all subrecipients shall 

certify and disclose accordingly. 

Ostandard Form LLL, "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities" attached. 

(This form must be attached to certification if non appropriated funds 

are to be used to influence activities.) 

2. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER 

RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS 

(DIRECT RECIPIENT) 

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, 

and implemented at 44 CFR Part 67, for prospective participants in 

primary covered transactions, as defined at 44 CFR Part 17, 

Section 17.510-A. The applicant certifies that it and its principals: 

(a) Are not presently debarred, suspended. proposed for debarment, 

declared ineligible, sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State 

or Federal court, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by 

any Federal department or agency; 

FEMA Form 20-16C, JUN 94 

(b) Have not within a .three-year period preceding this application been 

convicted of ar had a civilian judgment rendered against them for 

commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 

obtaining, attempting to obtain , or perform a public (Federal, Sta te, 

or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation 

of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 

theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, 

making false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly 

charged by a governmental entity (Federal, Sta te, or loca l) with 

commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1 )(b) 

of this certification; and 

(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application 

had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) 

terminated for cause or default; and 

B. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements 

in this certi fi cation, he or shall shall attached an explanation to this 

application. 

3. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE 
(GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS) 

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and 

implemented at 44 CFR Part 17, Subpart F, for grantees , as defined 

at 44 CFR Part 17, Sections 17.615 and 17.620: 

A. The applicant certifies that it will continue to privide a drug

free workplace by: 

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful 

manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of a 

controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's workplace and 

specifying the actions tht will be taken against employees for 

violation of such prohibition; 

(b) Establishing an on-going drug free awareness program to 

inform empoyees about: 

(1) The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 

(2) The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 

(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and 

employee assistance programs; and 

(4) the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for 

drug abuse violations occurring in the workplace; 

080514 BCC Meeting

108



(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in 

the performance of the grant to be given a copy of the statement 

required by paragraph (a) ; 

{d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by 

paragraph (a) that, as a condition of employment under the grant, 

the employee will : 

(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and 

(2) Notify the employee in writing of his or her conviction for a 

violation of a criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later 

than five ca lendar days after such conviction. 

(e) Notifying the agency, in writing, within 10 ca lendar days after 

receiving notice under subparag raph {d)(2) from an employee or 

otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction . Employers of 

convicted employees must provide notice, including position title , 

to the applicable FEMA awarding office, i.e., regional office or 

FEMA office. 

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 ca lendar days of 

receiving notice under subparag raph (d)(2), with respect to any 

employee who is so convicted: 

(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, 

up to and includ ing termination , consistent with the requirements 

of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 , as amended; or 

FEMA Form 20-16C (BACK) 

(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a 

drug abuse assistance or rehabilitation program approved for 

such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health , law enforcement , 

or other appropriate agency . 

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free 

workplace through implementation of paragraphs (a), {b), (c), (d) , (e) , 

and (f) . 

8. the grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for 

the performance of work done in connection with the speci fic grant: 

Place of Performance (Street address, City, County, State , Zip code) 

Check Dif there are workplaces on file that are not identified here. 

Section 17.630 of the regulations provide that a grantee that is a State 

may elect to make one certifica tion in each Federal fiscal year. A copy 

of which should be included with each application for FEMA funding . 

States and State agencies may elect to use a Statewide certifica ti on. 

080514 BCC Meeting

109



DISCLOSURE OF LOBBYING ACTIVITIES Approved by OMB 

0348-0046 Complete this form to disclose lobbying activities pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352 

Type of Federal Action: 

Oa. contract 

b. grant 

c. cooperative agreement 

d. loan 

e. loan guarantee 

f. loan insurance 

Name and Address of Reporting Entity: 

0Prime 

gressional District, if known : 

Federal DepartmenUAgency: 

. Federal Action Number, if known: 

a. Name and Address of Lobbying Registrant 

(if individual, last name, first name, Ml).· 

blic burden disclosu 

Status of Federal Action: 

0 a. bid/offer/application 

b. initial award 

c. post-award 

Osubawardee 

Tier ____ ,if known : 

1. Information requested through this form is authorized by title 31 

U.S.C. section 1352. This disclosure of lobbying activi ties is a material 

representation of fact upon which reliance was placed by the tier 

above when this transaction was made or entered into. This 

disclosure is required pursuant to 31 U.S.C. 1352. This information 

will be reported to the Congress semi-annually and will be 

avai lable for public inspection. Any person who fails to file the 

required disclosure shall be subject to a civi l penalty of not less 

than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure . 

3. Report Type: 

Oa. initial filing 

b. material change 

For Material Change Only : 

year quarter 

date of last report 

5. If Reporting Entity in No. 4 is Subawardee, Enter Name 

and Address of Prime: 

Congressional District, if known: 

7. Federal Program Name/Description: 

CFDA Number, if applicable: 

9. Award Amount, if known : 

b. Individuals Performing Services (including address if 

different from No. 10a) (last name, first name, Ml) : 

Signature: 

Print Name: 

Title: 

Telephone No.: Date: -------1 

for Local Reproduction 

080514 BCC Meeting

110



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

TAX MATTERS  
A. Monthly Collections Report 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Larry Warren, Tax Administrator, will present the Monthly Collections Report and be 
available for questions and discussion. 
 
The report is for information only; therefore, no action is required. 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

111



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

112



AGENDA ITEM 9: 

TAX MATTERS  
B. Refunds and Releases 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Mr. Warren will present the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
Board action is required to accept the Refunds and Releases Reports. 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

113



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

114



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
A. Caldwell Community College & Technical Institute (CCC&TI) Proposed Land 

Transfer 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
As discussed at the annual retreat, Caldwell Community College and Technical Institute has 
turned over the Continuing Education Building to the County as they no longer require the use of 
the building with the completion of the new facility at the White Oak Campus.  Staff has 
examined the building and reviewed potential uses for County operations.  Based on the review, 
staff would recommend the Board surplus the property and authorize the sale of the property on 
GovDeals as there are no current County needs for the facility.  
 
The Board would need to establish a sale price and adopt the attached resolution to sell the 
property on GovDeals.  The current tax value of the property is $331,000.   
 
Board direction is requested. 
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

115



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
 
COUNTY OF WATAUGA 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE 
WATAUGA COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

AUTHORIZING THE SALE OF 139 Health Center Drive, BOONE, NC 
 
 WHEREAS, the County of Watauga owns a 1.060 acre tract located at 139 Health Center 
Drive, Boone, NC, Parcel ID 2920-07-6399-000 in the Watauga County tax maps; and  
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 153A-176 permits a County to dispose of 
any real or personal property belonging to it according to the procedures prescribed in Chapter 
160A, Article 12; and  
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 153A-176 permits the County to sell real 
property by electronic advertisement and public auction; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-270(c) provides that auctions of real 
property may be conducted electronically if the County authorizes the establishment of an 
electronic auction procedure or authorizes the use of existing private or public electronic 
auction services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County has passed a Resolution authorizing the establishment of an 
electronic auction procedure and the use of existing public and private electronic auction 
services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute § 160A-270(c) provides that notice of all 
electronic sales may be published solely by electronic means if that exclusive method of 
publication is approved by the governing board of the political subdivision; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners has adopted a Resolution for the exclusive 
method of publication being by electronic means. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Watauga County Board of Commissioners as 
follows: 
 

1. The Watauga County Board of Commissioners hereby authorizes the sale of the 
following described tract of land by existing private electronic auction services at 
www.govdeals.com: 
 

Tract 2, consisting of 1.060 acres by coordinates, as shown on that plat map 
titled “Satellite Annexation of:  Caldwell Community College & Technical 
Institute; Hospitality House of the Boone Area, Inc. & Watauga County 
Properties,” recorded in the Plat Book 22, at Page 81, Watauga County Registry. 

DRAFT 
080514 BCC Meeting

116



2. The County will accept bids for the property until September 30, 2014 at 5:00 PM. 

 
3. September 30, 2014 at 5:00 PM is the deadline for bidding.  The record of bids shall be 

reported to the Board of Commissioners at their regular meeting on October 7, 2014. 
 

4. The minimum opening bid for this property shall be $                           . 
 

5. The Board of Commissioners will determine the highest responsible bidder for the 
property and has discretion to award the bid. 

 
6. To be responsible, a bid deposit of five percent (5%) of the amount of the bid must be 

paid within five business days after close of auction. The deposit of the bidder to whom 
the award is made will be held until the sale of the property is closed; if that bidder 
refuses at any time to close the sale, the deposit will be forfeited to the County.  Final 
payment and close of sale must be accomplished within 60 days after close of auction. 
Bidder is responsible for all property survey, deed preparation, attorney and recording 
costs associated with the deed transfer. 

 
7. In addition, to be responsible, a bidder must be current on payment of all property taxes 

owed to the county. 
 

8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time and the 
right to reject all bids. 

 
9. This Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of North Carolina General Statutes 

§ 153A-176, 160A-266, and 160A-270. 
 
 ADOPTED this the ___ day of _________, 20___. 
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Nathan A. Miller, Chairman 
       Watauga County Board of Commissioners   
ATTEST: 
 
____________________________     (SEAL) 
Anita J. Fogle, Clerk to the Board 

080514 BCC Meeting

117



080514 BCC Meeting

118



080514 BCC Meeting

119



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

120



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
B. Request to Accept Grant to Fund Potential Recreation Center Site Analysis and 

Renderings 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
At the last Board meeting, direction was given to staff to pursue and accept a $10,000 grant from 
the NC Community Foundation to fund all or a portion of the site analysis for a potential 
recreation center.  Mr. Francis with the NC Community Foundation has indicated that he will not 
have a response on the funding until possibly August. 
 
After the Board meeting, Jennifer Greene, Appalachian District Health, notified County staff of 
the availability of $10,000 in funding as part of their Community Transformation Grant.  
Enclosed is an MOU between the County and the Appalachian District Health Department to 
provide a one-time grant award in the amount of $10,000 for a site analysis for a recreation 
center.  County staff would continue to work with the NC Community Foundation and in the 
event additional funding is provided the scope of the project would be increased to utilize the 
additional funding. 
 
Staff recommends the Board approve the MOU with the Appalachian District Health Department 
to provide $10,000 for a site analysis at 231 Complex Drive for a potential recreation center.   
 
Board action is requested.   
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

121



080514 BCC Meeting

122



080514 BCC Meeting

123



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

124



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
C. Appointment of the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners’ (NCACC) 

Annual Conference Voting Delegate 
 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) Annual Conference is 
scheduled for August 14-17, 2014, in Buncombe County.  Each county in attendance is required 
to select a voting member for representation at the annual business meeting which is conducted 
as a part of the conference.  Submission of the voting delegate is due August 1, 2014.   
 
Board direction is requested. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

125



 

 
 
 
 

Designation of Voting Delegate 
to NCACC Annual Conference 

  
 
 
 I, ______________________________________, hereby certify that I am the duly designated voting 

delegate for ______________________________ County at the 107th Annual Conference of the North 

Carolina Association of County Commissioners to be held in Buncombe County, N.C., on August 14-

17, 2014. 

 
Signed: ______________________________________ 

Title:_______________________________________ 

 
Article VI, Section 2 of our Constitution provides: 
 

 “On all questions, including the election of officers, each county represented shall be entitled to one 
vote, which shall be the majority expression of the delegates of that county. The vote of any county in 
good standing may be cast by any one of its county commissioners who is present at the time the vote 
is taken; provided, if no commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by another county official, 
elected or appointed, who holds elective office or an appointed position in the county whose vote is 
being cast and who is formally designated by the board of county commissioners. These provisions 
shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association. A county in good standing is defined as one 
which has paid the current year's dues.” 
 

 
 
Please return this form to Sheila Sammons by: Friday, August 1, 2014: 

 
NCACC 

215 N. Dawson St. 
Raleigh, NC 27603 
Fax: (919) 719-1172 

sheila.sammons@ncacc.org 
(p) (919) 715-4365 

 

080514 BCC Meeting

126



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
D. Boards and Commissions 

 
MANAGER’S COMMENTS: 
 
Ms. Laura Jane Ward, Regional Ombudsman with the High Country Council of Governments, 
has requested that Mr. Herbert Hash be considered for reappointment to the Watauga County 
Nursing Home Advisory Committee for a three-year term.  This is a second reading and, 
therefore, action may be taken, if so desired. 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

127



080514 BCC Meeting

128



080514 BCC Meeting

129



Blank Page 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

130



AGENDA ITEM 10: 

MISCELLANEOUS ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
E. Announcements 

 
The North Carolina Association of County Commissioners' (NCACC) Annual Conference is 
scheduled for August 14-17, 2014, in Buncombe County.  Please click on the links in the 
attached email for detailed information.  If you plan to attend, please inform Anita who will be 
happy to make hotel reservations and RSVP on your behalf. 
 
The dedication of the Law Enforcement Memorial will be Saturday, July 26, 2014, at 7:00 PM.  
 
A public hearing will be held at 6:00 P.M. on Tuesday, August 19, 2014, to allow citizen 
comment on the January 1, 2015, elimination of the Town of Boone’s Extraterritorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ) in the Commissioners’ Board Room. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

080514 BCC Meeting

131



1

Anita.Fogle

From: Todd McGee <todd.mcgee@ncacc.org>
Sent: Tuesday, May 20, 2014 5:12 PM
To: Anita.Fogle
Subject: Registration opens for 2014 NCACC Annual Conference

 

 

 
 

Registration opens for 2014 NCACC Annual Conference 
 
Just as a farmer faces each growing season with a plan based on experience and knowledge of soil conditions, weather and 
available resources, county leaders know economic stability requires preparation, patience and trust in their citizens and other 
assets. “Cultivating Economic Growth” is the theme for the NCACC’s 107th Annual Conference, which will be held August 14‐17 
in Buncombe County. 
 
While commissioners are not likely to find a single “silver bullet” that cures their county’s economic ills, by learning from others’ 
successes (or shortcomings), realizing their county’s existing assets and existing resources, and forging synergy around economic 
development, county leaders can help create an environment for jobs to sprout and the economy to blossom. Recruitment of 
large corporations draw the majority of media attention, but more often economic development occurs in other forms such as 
expansion of an existing business or the creation of a small or microbusiness. 
 
A diverse community of stable and growing employers is the lifeblood of a healthy county. County boards will have differences in 
vision and policies, but commissioners play a crucial role in cultivating that economic growth. The Association’s Annual 
Conference will help showcase those various approaches, provide a forum for attendees to learn from others’ successes and 
failures and talk with experienced economic development professionals. 
 
Conference Highlights 
 
Keynote Speaker Neal Petersen (Friday General Session) 
Plenary Speaker Vincent Covello (Saturday General Session) 
Horn O' Plenty at N.C. Arboretum (Friday evening) 
President's Banquet and Reception (Saturday evening) 
 

 Click here to register for 2014 Annual Conference. 

080514 BCC Meeting

132

https://www.signup4.net/public/ap.aspx?EID=20143243E&TID=svw3jrKETb9lzLUX47Viwg%3d%3d
https://www.signup4.net/public/ap.aspx?EID=20143243E&OID=165
https://www.signup4.net/public/ap.aspx?EID=20143243E&OID=160
https://www.signup4.net/public/ap.aspx?EID=20143243E&OID=162
https://www.signup4.net/public/ap.aspx?EID=20143243E&OID=50


AGENDA ITEM 11: 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

080514 BCC Meeting

133


	Tentative Agenda
	Approval of Minutes
	Approval of the August 5, 2014, Agenda
	Watauga County Arts Council Request to Modify Lease
	Bid Award Request for Repairs to the Transfer Station Floor
	Request to Schedule a Public Hearing to Allow for Citizen Comment Regarding Proposed Amendments to the Ordinance to Govern Height of Structures in Watauga County
	Maintenance Matters
	A.  Bid Award Request for Truck Purchase
	B.  Proposed Contract for Architectural Services for Medics Base #3

	Communications & Emergency Services
	A.  Out-of-State Travel Request
	B.  Proposed HMGP Grant Application

	Tax Matters
	A. Monthly Collections Report
	B.  Refunds and Releases

	Miscellaneous Administrative Matters
	A.  CCC&TI Proposed Land Transfer 
	B.  Request to Accept Grant to Fund Potential Recreation Center Site Analysis and Renderings
	C.  Appointment of the NCACC Annual Conference Voting Delegate
	D.  Boards & Commissions
	E.  Announcements

	Public Comment



